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GICD

LIMITED
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 42" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Members of ICDS Limited
will be held on Monday, the 23@ September, 2013 at 4.00 p.m. at Rotary Hall, Ananth Nagar,
Manipal — 576 104, Udupi District to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Balance sheet as at 315 March, 2013 and the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended on that date and reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. H. N. S. Rao who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. U. Harish P. Shenoy who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

4. To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. M/s Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai are eligible for reappointment.

By Order of the Board

Registered Office:

Syndicate House Sar/-
Manipal — 576 104 T. Mohandas Pai
Date : 05-08-2013 Chairman & Whole-time Director
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LIMITED

NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

The Company has transferred unclaimed dividend declared upto the financial year ended 315t March,
1995 to the General Revenue Account of the Central Government. Those who have not encashed
their dividend warrants, for whatever reason, for the period to and including 31t March, 1995 are
requested to claim amount from the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, Bangalore.

Unclaimed dividend for the year ended 315t March, 1996, 315t March, 1997 and 318t December,
1997 has been transferred by the Company to “Investor Education and Protection Fund” set up by
the Central Government and no claims shall lie against the fund or the Company in respect of the
amounts so transferred.

Members who wish to obtain any information on the Company or view the accounts for the Financial
Year ended 315t March, 2013 may visit the Company’s corporate website: www.icdslimited.com or
send their queries at least 10 days before the Annual General Meeting to the Secretarial Department
at the Registered Office of the Company.

The information as required to be provided under the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges,
regarding the Directors who are proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is given hereunder:

A) Name : Mr.H.N.S.Rao
Date of Birth :  04-10-1938
Date of Appointment : 12-01-2009
Expertise in Specific Functional Areas : Retd. Dy. G. M. of Syndicate Bank, He has

experience of over 35 years in Nationalised
Bank and Financial Institution in various areas
like administration, finance, especially in credit
management and recovery. He worked as General
Manager of the Company over 10 years and his
work was focused on credit and recovery besides
general administration.

List of other Directorships Held :  MPL Enterprises Limited
Blue Cross Builders and Investors Ltd.
Manipal Properties Limited
Sri Ramakrishna Theatre Ltid.

Chairman/Member of the
Committees of the Board :  Member — Shareholders Grievance Committee

Chairman/Member of the
Committees of the Board of
other Companies in which he is Director : MPL Enterprises Ltd.




B) Name
Date of Birth

Expertise in Specific Functional Areas

List of other Directorships Held

Chairman/Member of the
Committees of the Board

Chairman / Member of the
Committees of the Board of

other Companies in which he is Director :

<Y,

Mr. U. Harish P. Shenoy
03-06-1968

Businessman
Member of Karnataka Konkani Sahitya Academy,
(Govt. of Karnataka)

ICDS Securities Ltd., Manipal

D
T

Member: Audit Committee

ICDS Securities Ltd.

5. The register of members and Share Transfer Book will remain closed from Friday, 20" September,
2013 to Monday 23™ September, 2013 (both days inclusive) in connection with 42" Annual General

Meeting.
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MITED
DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors present their 429 ANNUAL REPORT
and Audited Statement of Accounts for the year
ended 31t March, 2013.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rs. in ’000s)
31t March 315! March

2013 2012

Income from Operations 3,16,27 1,20,96
Other Income 2,27,33 85,90
Write back of provisions 32,15 43,86
Total Income 5,75,75 2,50,72
Less: Operating Expenses 3,12,04 1,563,13

2,63,71 97,59
Less: Interest 48,14 54,41
Profit/(Loss) before
Depreciation 2,15,57 43,18
Less: Depreciation 7,05 7,13
Profit/(Loss) after
Depreciation before Tax 2,08,52 36,05
Less: Provision for Income
Tax/(write back) (1,26,00) -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 3,34,52 36,05
Add: (Loss) brought forward ~ (13,01,75) (13,37,80)
(Loss) carried forward (9,67,23) (13,01,75)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review the Company has
earned a gross income of Rs.5.76 Crores (Rs.2.51
Crores in the corresponding period of the previous
year) from recovery of over dues from HP/Lease/
Bills Discounting/Loan Parties, Commission from
insurance related activities, service charges
earmed from telephone bill recovery services,
dividend, interest and others. The operating
expenses incurred during the reporting period was
Rs.3.12 Crores as against Rs.1.53 Crores in the
previous year. The accumulated losses which was
at Rs.13.02 Crores as on 318 March, 2012 has
been reduced to Rs.9.67 Crores on 315t March,

2013. The total net worth of the Company as on
318t March, 2013 went up to Rs.4.93 Crores.

DIVIDEND

Since the Company has carried forward losses
in the current year, the Directors express their
inability to declare Dividend.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

As reported in the previous year, the Company
has repaid all six installments of public liabilities,
in terms of Scheme of arrangement sanctioned by
the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. An affidavit
was filed on 313t August, 2010 to the effect that
the repayment of investments under the Scheme
of Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'ble High
Court of Karnataka has been completed. The
Hon’ble High Court has taken note of the same.

Out of total liability of Rs.239.10 Crores, payable
under the scheme, an amount aggregating to
Rs.235.90 Crores has been repaid. Unclaimed
amount by the investors as on 318 March, 2013
is Rs.3.20 crores. The full details are given
herebelow:

(Rs. in Crores)

Amount Balance

Amount Payable as per Paid as on| Amount
Scheme 3132013 | Payable

18t Instalment 57.27 56.98* 0.29
2" Instalment 51.78 51.78 Nil
31 |nstalment 51.78 51.78 Nil
4th |nstalment 35.75 34.88* 0.87
5% Instalment 28.71 28.71 Nil
6! Instalment 13.81 11.77 2.04
Total 239.10 235.90 3.20

* includes interest on Public Liabilities of face value of less than
Rs.10,000/-

** includes interest on Public Liabilities of face value of less than
Rs.20,000/-

Arrangements are in place to pay the claims
received from investors as and when the original
investment certificates lodged by such investors.




FUTURE BUSINESS PLANS

As reported in the earlier years, the company
stopped NBFC business as per the undertaking
given to Hble High Court of Karnataka while
considering the company’s application for scheme
of arrangement. Since then company was focusing
its activities on recovery of over dues. Since the
company’s net owned funds has become positive
and meets the minimum required NOF stipulated
for Non Banking Finance Business, it is proposed
to apply to Reserve Bank of India for registering
the company as a Non-Deposit taking NBFC for
pursuing business of Hire Purchase/Lease finance
or Investment Banking.

FEE BASED ACTIVITIES

In order to generate some income to partly meet
the establishment expenses, your Company has
been engaged as Corporate Agent for Life and
General Insurance Companies. The Company has
also taken up distributorship of Sistema Shyam
Teleservices Ltd. for their MTS mobile phones
and accessories at Coimbatore and Salem areas
in the state of Tamilnadu. Besides, your company
is acting as collection agent for Fullerton India
Credit Ltd. and address verification agent for Tata
Teleservices Ltd. at Coimbatore. The company is
focusing on collecting over dues from HP/Lease/
Loans/Bills discounted parties.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As required under Section 212 of the Companies
Act, 1956 the Audited Statement of Accounts
along with reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors of your Company's subsidiaries, namely,
Manipal Hotels Ltd. and Manipal Properties Ltd.
are annexed.

DIRECTORS

Mr. H. N. S. Rao and Mr. U. Harish P. Shenoy
retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General

6ICDS

MITED

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, your Directors’ confirm
that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanations
relating to material departure;

ii) appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on 318 March, 2013 and of the
profit of the company for the year ended as on
that date;

iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of
the Company’s Act and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern
depends upon the timely recovery from debtors
and future business plan. Management of
the Company is hopeful of recovery of dues
from debtors and the measures taken by
the Company will result in controlling the
operating deficits.

Particulars of employees as required under
Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956:
NIL

Particulars regarding conservation of energy
and technology absorption: NIL

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: NIL
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AUDITORS

M/s Chaturvedi & Shah Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai, the Auditors of the Company retire at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible
for reappointment.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchange, Corporate Governance
Report and Auditor's Certificate regarding
Compliance of conditions of Governance are
made part of this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As required under Clause 32 of the Listing
Agreement, Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of subsidiary companies form part of
this Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their
appreciation of the services and co-operation
extended to us by our Bankers, Investors and
Members of Staff of the Company, during the year
under report. Your directors also wish to thank the
shareholders for their support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sdr-

Place : Manipal (T. Mohandas Pai)
Date :05-08-2013 Chairman & Whole-time Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

D
T

Corporate Governance Code 3. Audit Committee:
The Directors present the Company’s report on Corporate The Audit Committee comprised of the following members
Governance as on 31t March, 2013 as required under of the Board:
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
. Sri Bharath K. Nayak, Chairman
1. Philosophy:
The Company believes in good corporate governance Sri K. M. Udupa, Member
and has _taken efforts to. implement the same wherever Sri Airody Giridhar Pai, Member
possible in the present circumstances. ) .
2. Board of Directors: Sri U. Harish P. Shenoy, Member
The Board comprised of six Directors, of which one is The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee
executive and five non-executives. cover the areas mentioned under Clause 49 of the Listing
The non-executive Directors are eminent personalities Agreement and Section 292A of the Companies Act,
with experience in Banking, Management and Finance 1956, besides other terms referred to by the Board of
etc. Directors from time to time. During the year Committee
(i) Number of Board Meeting and Attendance of met on 30" May, 2012, 7" August, 2012, 8" November,
Directors: 2012 and 5™ February, 2013. Mr. Bharath K. Nayak,
The Board met 4 times during 2012-2013. The details Director is the Compliance Officer.
are as follows: Attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee
] Board _NO- of Meeting:
Date of Meeting Strength Directors N  Mornb
Present Meeting held on o ?’res::: ers
30t May, 2012 6 5
30th May, 2012 3
7' August, 2012 6 5
7" August, 2012 3
8" November, 2012 6 4
8t November, 2012 3
5" February, 2013 6 6
5" February, 2013 4
The last AGM was held on 27 August, 2012 and all
the six Directors attended the AGM.
ii) The Composition of Board of Directors, their  4- Remuneration Committee:
directorships in other companies and memberships Sri T. Mohandas Pai is the only whole-time Director of
in committees and the details of their attendance at the Company and he does not draw any remuneration.
the Board Meetings are given below: Therefore this committee has not been formed.
No. of No. of Board
Sl. . Category of " Attendance | No. of other committees in
No. Name of the Directors Directorships ':t‘:::::g: at last AGM | Directorship | which Chairman(C)
Member(M)
1. |Sri T. Mohandas Pai Promoter Executive 3 Yes 5 1(C)
3(M)
2. |SriH. N. S. Rao Non-Executive 4 Yes 4 2(M)
3. |Sri Bharath K. Nayak Non-Executive 3 Yes 16 2(M)
4. |Sri K. M. Udupa Non-Executive 4 Yes 1 1(M)
5. |Sri Airody Giridhar Pai  |Non-Executive 2 Yes 1 1(M)
6. |Sri U. Harish P. Shenoy |Non-Executive 4 Yes 1 1(M)
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Details of remuneration for the year ended 315! March,

2013:

i) Whole-Time Director: Nil

i) Non-Executive Directors:
Non-Executive Directors were paid remuneration by
way of sitting fees for attending Board Meetings from
12th November, 2010 onwards.

Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee:

The Committee approves transfer, transmission, issue
of duplicate Debenture Certificates and Sub-Ordinated
Debts, review and redress shareholders grievances/
complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares,
debentures, sub-ordinated debts, non-receipt of Balance
Sheet, non-receipt of Dividend Warrants, etc. The
Committee met 4 times during the year under report.

The Composition of Shareholders’/Investors Grievance
Committee and attendance of the members in the
meeting is given below:

sl No. of
Nc; Name Status Meetings
) attended
1. |Mr. Bharath K. Nayak Independent 3
Director
2. [Mr. K. M. Udupa Independent 4
Director
3. [Mr. A. Giridhar Pai Independent 2
Director
4. |Mr. U. Harish P. Shenoy |Independent 4
Director
Mr. Bharath K. Nayak, Director is the Compliance Officer.
Number of Shareholders Complaints received 120
Number of Shareholders Complaints settled 1 20
Number not solved to the satisfaction of the
shareholders : Nil
Number of pending Share transfers : Nil

6. Annual General Meetings:

The last three Annual General Meetings were held in
Rotary Hall, Manipal — 576 104.

AN(':"M Date Time |Special Resolution required
39 (27-09-2010 |4.00 p.m. |Re-appointment of Mr. T.
Mohandas Pai as Whole-time
Director for a period of 5 years
with effect from 15t September,
2010 without remuneration for
the time being.
40 |[19-09-2011 [4.00 p.m. |NIL
41 (27-08-2012 |4.00 p.m. [NIL

All the resolutions as set out in the respective notices were
passed by the shareholders.

Postal Ballot:

The Notice of 42" Annual General Meeting does not contain
any item which required approval by Postal Ballot.

7. Disclosures:

(i) National Stock Exchange suspended trading in

our equity shares w.e.f. 271 June, 2002 for non-
submission of the Board Meeting notices for the
quarter ended 30t September, 2000, December 31¢,
2000 and March 31%t, 2001 and non-submission of
Limited Review Report for the half-year ended 31t
December, 2000. The non-submission was due to
the restructuring of the operation of the Company
during that period as the exact impact of the
restructuring process could not be ascertained as
on the reporting date. We have requested National
Stock Exchange to condone the lapses and revoke
the suspension.
None of the transactions with the directors or
their relatives, management personnel and /
or subsidiaries conflicts with the interest of the
Company. Attention of the members is drawn to the
disclosure of transaction with related parties set out
in Notes to Financial Statements forming part of the
Annual Report.

All related party transactions are entered in arms
length basis and are only intended to further the
interests of the Company.

8. Means of Communication:

a) Quarterly/Half-yearly Financial Results of the
Company are forwarded to National Stock Exchange
and are made available on the company’s Website:
www.icdslimited.com and also  published in
News Papers in terms of Clause 41 of the Listing
Agreement.

b) Company has not made any presentations to any
Institutional Investors/Analyst during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Review of Operations:

The Company has given an undertaking {(as insisted by
RBI) to the effect that it will not engage in NBFC business.
Therefore since 15 July, 2002, the company is neither
accepting any deposit nor doing any Hire Purchase/Lease
Finance/Loan/Bill Discounting business. The present activity
of the company is restricted to recovery of overdues of Hire
Purchase Installments/Lease Installments or Loans and
other dues and repayment of public Liabilites as per the
Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'’ble High
Court of Karnataka.

In order to generate some income to partly meet the
establishment expenses, the company has been engaged as
Corporate Agent for life and General Insurance Companies.
The company has also taken-up distributorship of Sistema
Shyam Teleservices Ltd. for their MTS mobile phones and

(in)
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accessories at Coimbatore and Salem areas in the state of
Tamilnadu. Besides yourcompanyis acting as collection agent
for Fullerton India Credit Limited and address verification
agent for Tata Tele Services Ltd. at Coimbatore. The company
is exploring other avenues of generating fee based income.

Business Review:

During the year under review, the company recovered/
realised an amount of about Rs.356.98 Lakhs from various
sources such as Recovery of Bad and Doubtful Debts,
Receivables from MPL Enterprises Ltd., Manipal Properties
Ltd., etc. The figure also includes fee based income earned
from such other activities like service charges under
Insurance Agency and Telecom Franchise, Dividend Income
and Rental Income. It also includes Income Tax refund of
Rs.42.62 Lakhs.

Payment of Public Liabilities:

In terms of Scheme of Amrrangement sanctioned by the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, the Company has paid
all six installments of public investments and subsequently
filed an affidavit dated 315t August, 2010 with the said Court
to the effect that the payment of Public investments under
the Scheme of Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon'ble
High Court of Karnataka has been completed. The Hon’ble
High Court has taken note of the same.

The Company has sent letters to remind those investors who
are yet to claim installment due for payment before 30t June,
2005 (especially to those who are yet to claim installment
pertaining to their investment below Rs.10,000/- in which full
face value with interest accrued thereon till 15-07-2002 was
payable), advising them to surrender the original investment
certificate to the Company. Likewise, there are also investors
who had not submitted the original investment certificates
to the Company to receive the remaining principal balance
and interest accrued till 15-07-2002 on investment with face
value of Rs.10,000/- or more but below Rs.20,000 under 4t
installment and investments of Rs. 20,000 or more under 6!
Installment.

As on 31%t March, 2013 out of total liability of Rs.23,910
lakhs, an amount aggregating to Rs.23,590 lakhs has
been paid in terms of Scheme of Arrangement. Amount
remained unclaimed by the investors as on 318t March, 2013
was Rs.320 lakhs. It is found that Cheques issued by the
Company in terms of Scheme towards installments have
not been presented to the Bank by a few investors. Similarly
there were instances where cheques dispatched by the
Company to the investors by post have been lost in transit
or not reached them. Such cheques have been time barred
and became stale. Amount involved in these stale cheques
aggregate to Rs.296.64 lakhs. (including investments up to
Rs.10,000 is Rs.3.97 Lakhs) The full details of payments are
given below:

Slh 1

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Amount Payable Am(;:n;nPald Balance amount
as per Scheme 31-03-2013 payable
5,727 5,698* 29
5,178 5,178 Nil
5,178 5,178 Nil
3,575 3,488** 87
2,871 2,871 Nil
1,381 1,177 204
23,910 23,590 320

* includes interest on Public Liabilities of face value of less
than Rs.10,000/-

** includes interest on Public Liabilities of face value of less
than Rs.20,000/-

Arrangements are in place to pay the claims received from

investors as and when the original investment certificates

lodged by such investors.

Transfer of Unclaimed Public Liabilities to Investors
Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) formed by the Govt.
of India, u/s 205C of the Companies Act, 1956.

The public liabilities which were not claimed by the investors
as on 31t March, 2012 pertaining to Installment of category
| of the Scheme, i.e. Face value of investment less than
Rs.10,000 was Rs.28.54 Lakhs. In addition to that stale/
unencashed cheques pertaining to the same category
was Rs.3.97 Lakhs. The total amount unpaid as far as
category | is concerned is Rs.32.51 Lakhs. The Company
has been making efforts to contact the investors to claim
these outstanding amounts through branches and individual
letters. As per Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 the
unclaimed investment amount should be remitted to IEPF
after the expiry of seven years from the due date. Even
though seven year was completed on 30th June, 2012 in the
interest of the investors, the full amount was not remitted to
|IEPF. During the year, Company has remitted Rs.2.10 Lakhs
to IEPF. The Company has also wrote individual letters to
all the investors and also issued notifications in the news
papers giving time upto 31st August, 2013 to make the
claim and informed them if the claim is not received till then,
the outstanding amount will be remitted to IEPF and once
remitted to IEPF, the investors cannot claim from the fund.
In response to the advertisement in news papers and letters
sent, the Company has been receiving claims from investors.
After 31st August, 2013 whatever amount is outstanding in
the Books will be remitted to IEPF thereafter. This measure
is taken by the Company in the interest of investors.

Internal Control System:

All the payments have been centralized in Head Office.
Powers are not given to the branch officials to incur any
expenditure. In the given circumstances there is no need for
any internal Audit at the branch level.

Discussion on Financial Performance:
The discussion on financial performance of the Company is
covered in the Director’s Report.

11
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Human Resource Development:
There has been no material development on the Human
Resources front. The number of people employed as on 318
March, 2013 was 60 as against the previous year's figure
of 63.

General Shareholder Information:
a) Annual General

Meeting : 42" Annual General Meeting
Day & Date : Monday, the 23" September, 2013
Time :4.00 p.m.

Venue : Rotary Hall, Ananth Nagar

Manipal — 576 104, Udupi District
b) Financial Calendar : 1% April to 312 March

¢) Date of Book

Closure : 20-09-2013 to 23-09-2013
(both days inclusive)
d) Dividend : No Dividend has been

recommended by the Board of
Directors for the year ended
31%tMarch, 2013.
e) Registered Office : Syndicate House, Manipal — 576 104
f) Listing on Stock
Exchanges : The equity shares are listed on
National Stock Exchange of India
Ltd.

Note: Annual Listing Fee has been paid upto date.

g) a) Stock Code

b) Dematerialisation

of Shares
¢) Email
d) Website

: ICDS LTD. EQ. (NSE)

: ISIN No. INE 613B01010
: emlist@nse.co.in

: www.nseindia.com

As on 31st March, 2013, 83,91,654 Equity Shares
forming 64.42% of the share capital of the Company
stands dematerialized (Previous Year: 95,72,614 equity
shares forming 73.48%). The decrease in the volume
of dematerialized shares is due to re-materialization
of 16,66,700 Equity Shares comprising 12.79% of the
total capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2013.
h) Market Price Data : Not Available.

Note: There had been no trading in our Equity Shares in
National Stock Exchange from June, 2002.
i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for Physical and
Demat Shares:
Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
Subramanian Building
No.1, Club House Road
Chennai - 600 002
Phone : (044-28460390),
Email : investor@cameoindia.com

j) Share Transfer System:

As directed by SEBI, Company has appointed Cameo
Corporate Services Ltd., V Floor, Subramanian Building,
No.1, Club House Road, Chennai — 600002, as Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent under demat and physical
form effective March, 2003. Till this date Share Transfers
etc. were done in-house once in two weeks. The
shareholders/investor’s Grievance Committee approves
all share transfer and transmission upon its receipt from
the Registrars.

k) Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on 31% March,
2013

Catogory (Amount)| Gaucs | Cagas | shares | AMON | pmciny

1 - 5000 4694 | 82.66 751687 7516870 5.77
5001 - 10000 530 9.33 368942 3689420 2.83
10001 - 20000 226 3.98 315037 3150370 242
20001 — 30000 70 1.23 174680 1746800 1.34
30001 - 40000 36 0.63 129852 1298520 1.00
40001 - 50000 14 0.25 61400 614000 047
50001 — 100000 25 0.44 184554 1845540 1.42
100001 — and above 84 1.48 | 11040548 | 110405480 84.75
Total 5679 | 100.00 | 13028700 | 130287000 100.00

Pattern of Equity Shareholding as on 315t March, 2013

Shareholders No. °hf Shares Percentage
eld

Foreign Body Corporate 400000 3.07
Directors, Relatives, Friends

and Associates 6694103 51.39
Financial Institutions 684813 5.26
Banks 4103 0.03
Other Cormorate Bodies 315237 242
Others 4928444 37.83
Total 13026700 100.00

1) Plant Locations: NIL
m) Company’s Website : www.icdslimited.com

n) Address for Investor’s Correspondence:
Secretarial Department
ICDS Ltd.
Regd. Office: Syndicate House
Manipal — 576 104
Phone: (0820) 2701500

Email: hnsrao@icdslimited.com
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LIMITED
DECLARATION

As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSEIL) and Bombay
Stock Exchange Ltd., (BSE) all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel affirmed compliance with ICDS Lid.,
Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year ended 312t March, 2013.

For ICDS Ltd.
Sd/-
Place : Manipal T. Mohandas Pai
Date : 29-05-2013 Chairman & Whole-time Director
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/CFO CERTIFICATION
To are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of
The Board of Directors conduct.
ICDS Ltd. c) Thatwe accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining
Manipal internal controls and that we have evaluated the effectiveness
We Chairman & Whole Time Director appointed in terms of the of the intemal control systems of the company.

Companies Act, 1956 and Chief Financial Officer of the Company d) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

certify to the Boa.rd that: . i) No significant changes have taken place in internal
a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow control process during the year.

statements for the year and that to the best of our knowledge ii) No significant changes in accounting policies during the

and belief.
i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue year.
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements For ICDS Ltd.
that might be misleading.
i) these statements together present a true and fair view Sd/- Sd/-
of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Whole-time Director

existing accounting standards, laws and regulations.

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions Place : Manipal
are entered into by the company during the year which Date : 29-05-2013

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON
COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To: The Members of ICDS Limited We state that,

¢ In respect of share holder grievances received during the
year ended March 31, 2013, no shareholder grievances are
pending against the Company as on 318 March, 2013 as per
the records maintained by the Company and presented to the

We have examined the Compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance by ICDS Ltd. (‘the Company’) for the year ended 318
March, 2013, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

of the said Company with Stock Exchanges in India. Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committee.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the ¢ In respect of investors grievances as regards to repayment
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited of debentures/deposits on maturity we are informed that the
to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the same is being repaid in terms of the scheme of arrangement

company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Kamnataka.
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expressionof ~ We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance

the opinion on the financial statements of the Company. as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations affairs of the Company.

given to us, we certify that the company has complied with the For CHATURVEDI & SHAH
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above Chartered Accountants
mentioned Listing Agreement, except that, Firm Registration No.:101720W
« the Company has not appointed Company Secretary after Sdr-
resignation of the company secretary on 30-01-06. C.D. Lala
Place : Mumbai Partner

« the Company does not have an Internal Audit system. Date : May 29, 2013 Membership No. 35671
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ICDS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of ICDS Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013
and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section
(3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act’). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us,

the accompanying financial statements give the

information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity

with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of
the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other

Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A)
of Section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
4 and 5 of the Order.

In terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2008
issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), we report
that,

a) the Certificate of Registration is cancelled
by Reserve Bank of India on October 09,
2002.
the Company has not obtained credit rating.
the Company has repaid all deposits as per
the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by
the Hon'ble High court of Karnataka except to
the extent of unclaimed deposits and amount
due to investor education and protection fund
as explained in Note No. 2.06(a) and (b) of
financial statements.

Legal and Regulatory

b)
c)
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d)

There has been some delay in submitting
return on deposits as specified in the First
Schedule to the Non-Banking Financial
Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998.

3. Asrequired by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report

that:
a)

we have obtained all the information and

explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b)

in our opinion proper books of account

as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

¢

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and

Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

In terms of the Annexure referred to in our report to
the members of ICDS Limited (‘the Company’) for
the year ended March 31, 2013 in Paragraph 1 of
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,
we report that :

i) a)

b)

iy a)

The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets on the basis of available
information.

All the fixed assets of the Company
other than those under lease have been
physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. As explained
to us, no discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

The Company during the year has not
disposed substantial portion of fixed
assets.

The inventory held by the Company
has been physically verified by the

ITED

GI1C

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement
of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement

comply with

the Accounting Standards

referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211
of the Act;

on the basis of written

representations

received from the directors as on March 31,
2013, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed
as a director in terms of Clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

Place : Mumbai
: May 29, 2013

Date

b)

c)

iii) a)

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101720W

Sd/-

C.D. Lala

Partner

Membership No.: 35671

management at the year end. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable.

In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the company and
the nature of its business.

On the basis of our examination of the
inventory records, we are of the opinion
that the Company needs fo strengthen
maintenance of inventory records. As
informed to us there was no material
discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to
book records.

As per the information and explanation
given to us, during the year, the Company
has granted interest free unsecured loans
aggregating to Rs. 5,700 thousands to one
Company listed in the register maintained
under Section 301 ofthe Act. The maximum
balance outstanding at any time during the
year is Rs.5,700 thousands and balance at
the yearend is Rs. Nil.

15
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As per the information and explanation
given to us, the terms and condition of
loans given by the company are prima-
facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
company.

The question of default in repayment of
principal amount does not arise as the loan
is repaid during the year.

As per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not taken
any loans, secured or unsecured, from
Companies, Firms or other parties listed in
the Register maintained under Section 301
of the Act. Consequently requirement of
Clause (jii) (e), to (g) of paragraph 4 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there is an
adequateinternal control system commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of
the business with regard to purchase of fixed
assets except in case of its trading operations
for purchase and sale of mobile phones and
its accessories and maintenance of inventory
records. We are informed that the Company
is in the process of strengthening its internal
control by implementing appropriate internal
control system.

a) Based on the audit procedures applied by
us and according to the information and
explanations provided by the management,
we are of the opinion that the particulars of
contracts and arrangements referred to in
Section 301 of the Act have been entered
in the register required to be maintained
under that section.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
the transactions made in pursuance of
contracts or arrangements entered in the
registers maintained under Section 301 of
the Act in respect of any party during the
year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing
market prices at the relevant date.

The Company's liabilities (including public

b)

vii)

viii)

ix)

deposits along with interest accrued thereon)
were restructured as per the Scheme of
Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'ble
High Court of Karnataka vide its Order dated
October 15, 2004. Accordingly the Company
has repaid its liabilities. We are informed by
the management that there are no other orders
by Company Law Board or National Company
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
Court or any other Tribunal.

The company does not have internal audit
system.

The Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records u/s 209(1)(d) of
the Act for the Company.

a) According to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company
is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs
duty, excise duty, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it except in case of an
amount of Rs.63,85 thousands which was
outstanding for more than 6 months as on
the date of balance sheet to be remitted
to Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) as referred to in Note Nos.
2.06(a) and 2.06(b) of the Financial
Statements. We have been informed by
the management of the Company that it is
in the process of giving public notification in
local news papers of respective branches
and in English news paper before remitting
the unclaimed/unencashed public liabilities
and will remit the same in due course after
giving sufficient time to instrument holder
to claim their dues as explained in Note
Nos. 2.06(a) and 2.06(b) of the Financial
Statements.

According to the records of the Company,
there are no dues of income tax, wealth
tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise
duty/cess which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute except the
following :

b)

16



SIEP

MITED

Name of the Nature of Dues Years to which it Amount Forum where dispute is
Statute pertains (Rs. in 000’s) pending
Income Tax Act, | Disallowance of Block assessment 56,172 * Special Leave Petition
1961 depreciation on year 1987-88 to before Hon’ble Supreme
leased assets 1997-98 Court of India

* net of amount paid under protest Rs.46,232 thousands.

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xvi)

The accumulated loss of the Company is more
than fifty percent of networth during the year
and the Company has not incurred cash losses
during the current year and the previous year.
Based on our audit procedures and on the
information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to a financial institution/banks. In respect
of matured debentures and interest accrued
thereon upto July 15, 2002, the Company
has repaid all the installments to debenture
holders as per the Scheme of Arrangement
as sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of
Karnataka on October 15, 2004.

In our opinion the Company has maintained
adequate documents and records where the
Company has granted loans and advances
on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or
a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore,
Clause 4(xiii) of the Order as amended is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has maintained proper records
for transactions and contracts in respect
of trading in shares and other investments
and timely entries have been made in those
records.

As per information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not given any guarantees
to Banks or Financial Institutions for loan taken
by others.

The Company has not taken any term loans
from banks or financial institutions during the
year.

xvii)

xviii)

XiX)

Xx)

xxi)

Place : Mumbai

Date

According to the information and explanations
given to us, and on overall examination of the
Balance Sheet of the Company, we are of the
opinion that, no funds raised on a short-term
basis have been used for long-term purpose.

During the year Company has not made any
preferential allotment of shares to parties and
companies covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company
has not issued any secured debentures
during the period covered under our report.
Accordingly provisions of Clause 4 (xix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by
public issue during the year.

During the course of examination of Books of
Account and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across any fraud on or
by the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have been informed of such
case by the Management.

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101720W

Sd/-
C.D. Lala
Partner

: May 29, 2013 Membership No.: 35671
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2013

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital 2.01 130,267 130,267
Reserves and Surplus 2.02 (28,649) (61,347)
101,618 68,920
Non Current Liabilities
Other long term liabilities 2.03 37,125 37,017
37,125 37,017
Current Liabilities
Short term borrowings 2.04 44,813 47,901
Trade payables 2.05 1,606 9,759
Other current liabilities 2.06 62,273 64,593
108,692 122,253
TOTAL 247,435 228,190
ASSETS ' )
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 2.07 3,223 3,965
Non current Investments 2.08 83,639 84,755
Long term loans and advances 2.09 49,678 31,213
Other non current assets 2.10 2,297 297
138,837 120,230
Current Assets
Inventories 2.1 1,376 28
Trade receivables 2.12 - -
Cash and bank balances 2.13 60,782 57,415
Short term loans and advances 2.14 43,614 46,916
Other current assets 2.15 2,826 3,601
108,598 107,960
TOTAL 247,435 228,190
Significant accounting policies and notes to 1&2 ' )

financial statements

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants Sd/-

Firm Registration No.: 101720W T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sdr- Sdr- Sd-

C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao Bharath K. Nayak

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai Place : Manipal

Date : May 29, 2013 Date : May 29, 2013
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2013

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars Note No. 2012-13 2011-12
Revenue from operations 2.16 31,627 12,096
Other income 2.17 25,948 12,387
Total Revenue 57,575 24,483
Expenses
Purchases 2.18 14,651 -
Changes in inventories of traded goods 219 (1,348) (28)
Employee benefits expense 2.20 7,936 8,341
Other Expenses 2.21 9,965 6,410
Finance Costs 2.22 4,814 5,442
Depreciation and amortization expense 2.23 705 713
Total Expenses 36,723 20,878
Profit before Tax 20,852 3,605
Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Reversal of excess provision of tax of earlier year (12,600) -
Profit for the year after Tax 33,452 3,605

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each
Basic and Diluted (in Rupees) 2.24 2.57 0.28
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1&2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants Sd/-

Firm Registration No.: 101720W T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sdr- Sdr- Sd-

C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao Bharath K. Nayak

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai Place : Manipal

Date : May 29, 2013 Date : May 29, 2013
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

Company overview

ICDS Limited ( “the Company”) was incorporated on October 21, 1971 and registered as a Non Banking Financial
Company (NBFC). The Company had filed the Scheme of Arrangement during August 2002, and stopped its fund
based business and surrendered its certificate of registration as Non Banking Finance Company to RBI. The Company
is presently concentrating on the recovery of its dues and repaying its liabilities and is also engaged in trading
activities of mobiles and accessories, marketing of the insurance products of life and general insurance companies.
The Company is diversifying into more fee based activities.

1. Significant accounting policies

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention from the books of account
maintained on accrual basis, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, and
comply with the accounting standards issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
Accounting Standard (Companies Rules) 2006 and referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act,
1956.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. Based
on the nature of service and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets, liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during
the period. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known / materialised.

System of Accounting and income recognition
a) The accounts are prepared under historical cost convention and all significant items of Income &
Expenditure are accounted on accrual system of accounting.
b) The company recognises income as prescribed by RBI guidelines on Income Recognition.
c) i} Hire Purchase Income is accounted by sum of digits method to provide a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment outstanding in the contracts.
i) Lease Income is accounted on accrual of lease rentals for the period.
i} Income from bills discounting is accounted on due basis.
iv) Brokerage/commission received on sale of mobiles and accessories, insurance agency services
has been accounted on accrual basis on certainty of realisation.
v) Sale of Mobile and Accessories are recognised on accrual basis net of value added tax.
vi) Interest is recognized using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the
transaction.
vii) Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is
established.
Tangible assets, intangible assets and Capital Work-in-progress
Fixed assets are stated at original cost/revalued cost less depreciation after taking into consideration the
Lease adjustment account where necessary.
Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation is provided on straight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in the Schedule
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation on revalued assets to the extent of revaluation is transferred
from Revaluation Reserve.
Fixed Asset individually costing less than Rs.5,000/- are depreciated @ 100% in the year of acquisition.
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Investments

a) Non current investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of investments is
made to recognise decline, other than temporary.

b) Investment in buildings that are not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations
of, the Company, have been classified as investment property. Investment properties are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation.

c) Current Investments are stated at cost or market value whichever is lower.

Inventories

a) Stock on hire is valued at agreement values net of recoveries.

b) Stock of shares and debentures are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

c) Stock of Mobiles and Accessories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Employee Benefits

a) The Company's Defined Contribution Plan to provident fund and pension fund are made at pre-
determined rates to the recognised Provident Fund and are charged to statement of profit and loss.

b) Liability for Defined Benefit Plan for Gratuity is provided on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance
Sheet date, carried out by Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset till the date of capitalization of qualifying asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxes on Income

a. Tax expenses comprise both Current Tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively
enacted rates. Current Tax represents the amount of Income Tax payable/recoverable in respect of the
Taxable income/loss for the reporting period.

b. Deferred Tax represents the effect of timing difference between Taxable income and accounting
income for the reporting period that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of
realization.

Earnings per share

The Basic Eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the period by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period. Diluted Earnings per share, if any
is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity share
outstanding during the period except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Impairment

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its fixed assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment
loss. Recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset and from its
disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised immediately as income in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions, other than employee benefits, are not discounted to their present value
and are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet
date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management
estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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2. Notes to financial statements

2.01 Share Capital Rs. in Thousands
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Authorised Capital
35,000,000 [March 31, 2012 : 35,000,000] 350,000 350,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
15,000,000 [March 31, 2012 : 15,000,000] 150,000 150,000
Preference Shares of Rs.10 each
500,000 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
13,026,700 [March 31, 2012 : 13,026,700] 130,267 130,267
Equity Shares Rs.10 each fully paid-up
Total 130,267 130,267
Reconciliation of number of shares
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Particulars No. of Rs. in No. of Rs. in
Shares Thousands Shares Thousands
Equity shares :
Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,026,700 130,267 | 13,026,700 130,267
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - —
Balance as at the end of the year 13,026,700 130,267 13,026,700 130,267

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

The Company has two classes of shares referred to as equity shares and preference shares having par
value of Rs.10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has
not issued any preference shares as on March 31, 2013.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Restrictions on the distribution of dividends:

The Board shall, propose to the shareholders the dividend payable out of free reserves and profits of
the Company. Upon such recommendation shareholders shall declare dividends i) all such dividends &
profits shall be paid to shareholders in their existing shareholding pattern and ii) any such dividend or other
distribution shall be based on profit generated by the Company or on appropriate basis permitted by the
applicable laws.

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares specifying the
number of shares held:

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Name of the Shareholder No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding
Teaching Fraternity & Education Trust 2,104,000 16.15% 2,104,000 16.15%
(including shares held by its trustee
Dr. H. Shantaram)
Music & Fine Arts Education Trust 1,476,600 11.34% 1,476,600 11.34%
(including shares held by its trustee
Sri T. Ranga Pai)
Mahendra Girdharilal 1,215,023 9.33% 1,215,023 9.33%
The Academy of General Education 868,488 6.67% 868,488 6.67%
Life Insurance Corporation of India 677,001 5.20% 677,001 5.20%
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Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 33,334 33,334
Add: Additions during the year - -
Closing Balance 33,334 33,334
Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance 35,494 36,248
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss (754) (754)
Closing Balance 34,740 35,494
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (130,175) (133,780)
Less: Profit for the Current Year 33,452 3,605
Closing Balance (96,723) (130,175)
Total (28,649) (61,347)

Other long term Liabilities

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Lease/Rent Deposits 37,125 37,017
Total 37,125 37,017
Short term Borrowings Rs. in Thousands
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Secured Loans
Working Capital Loans from Banks 44,813 47,901
Total 44,813 47,901
Notes:

Nature of Security

The above working capital loan is secured by deposit with banks amounting to Rs.55,000 thousands

(March 31, 2012: Rs.55,000 thousands).

Terms of Repayment
The above loan is repayable on demand.

Trade Payables

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises*
Due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises

1,606

9,759

Total

1,606

9,759

* The Management is in a continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations
under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). There are
no balances due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per the information available with the Company and

representation made in this regard.
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Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Public Liabilities
Unclaimed
Amount due to Investor Education and Protection Fund (a)
— matured deposits 1,094 —
— interest on matured deposits 453 -
— matured debentures 973 -
— interest on matured debentures 99 -
— matured subordinated debts 214 -
— interest on matured subordinated debts 21 -
— Other Public Liabilities 397 -
Others
— matured deposits - 1,248
— interest on matured deposits 10,207 10,913
— matured debentures - 973
— interest on matured debentures 15,383 16,583
— matured subordinated debts - 214
— interest on matured subordinated debts 3,580 3,388
— Other Public Liabilities (b) 29,664 30,302
Other Payables 25 43
Book Overdraft - 731
Statutory Dues 163 198
Total 62,273 64,593

Notes:
a) Public Liabilities amounting to Rs.3,251 thousands (includes unencashed stale cheques) relating

b)

to Deposits, Non Convertible debentures and Subordinated debts which were lying after adjusting
the loans borrowed against them and unclaimed for more than seven years is payable to Investor
Education and Protection fund. These Public liabilities are payable against the investments which
have completed seven years from the due date on which these investments were scheduled to be
paid as per the Scheme of arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. The first
such payment became due for remittance to IPEF on July 31, 2012.

The management is of the opinion that the due date for remittance of unclaimed public liabilities starts
after seven years from the due date of the last installment of the instrument as per the Scheme,
accordingly the management considers Rs.31,34 thousands outstanding with regard to the first
installment is not due for payment to IEPF. The Company is in the process of approaching instrument
holders by way of public notification through local news paper and widely circulated English news
papers and individual letters to each of them. The Company is yet to remit the same to IEPF and will
remit subsequent to the due date to be mentioned in the paper notification. The company will remit the
balance (unclaimed/unencashed) public liabilities thereafter.
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2.08 Non Current Investments Rs. in Thousands
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Long term Investments (at cost)

Investment property

Cost of building given on operating lease 67,847 67,847

Less: Accumulated depreciation 17,664 16,558

Net Block 50,183 51,289

Investments in government securities

National Savings Certificate P - 10
- 10

Investments in quoted, fully paid-up Equity Shares®
Associate Company

ICDS Securities Ltd. 23,336 23,336
[1,423,350 (March 31, 2012 : 1,423,350) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
Others
Lingapur Estates Ltd. 1,734 1,734
[153,392 (March 31, 2012 : 153,392) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited 9,181 9,181
[449,163 (March 31, 2012 : 449,163) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
34,251 34,251
Investments in unquoted, fully paid-up Equity Shares
Wholly owned Subsidiary Companies
Manipal Hotels Ltd. 500 500
[50,000 (March 31, 2012 : 50,000) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
Manipal Properties Ltd. [Refer Note 2.14(a)(ii)] 999 999
[9,989 (March 31, 2012 : 9,989) shares of face value Rs.100/- each]
1,499 1,499
Others
Development Co-op. Bank Ltd. 18 18
[1,200 (March 31, 2012 : 1,200) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
Manipal Housing Finance Syndicate Ltd. 9,103 9,103
[729,000 (March 31, 2012 : 729,000) shares of face value Rs.10/- each]
9,121 9,121
Less: Provisions for diminution in value of investments? 11,415 11,415
Total 83,639 84,755
Aggregate value of quoted investments (net of provision)d 23,336 23,336
Market Value of quoted investments® 23,336 23,336
Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of provision)? 10,120 10,120

Notes:

3 Investment property includes shares of the face value of Rs. 511/- in Co-operative Housing Society.

b National Savings Certificates of the face value of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2012: Rs. 10 thousands) have been
lodged with Government Departments.

¢ Market price of the Quoted shares has been taken at face value, in the absence of trading in stock exchanges
during the year.

9 Details of Provisions for diminution in value of investments.
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Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Lingapur Estates Ltd. 1,734 1,734
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited 9,181 9,181
Manipal Hotels Ltd. 500 500
Total 11,415 11,415

Long term Loans and Advances

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31, 2012

Unsecured
Rent and other deposits 496 1,089
Less: Provision - (154)
496 935
Advance taxes (net of Provisions) 49,136 30,278
VAT Input Credit 46 -
Total 49,678 31,213

Other non-current Assets

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Deposit with banks maturing after 12 months 2,297 297
Total 2,297 297

Inventories

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Stock on Hire
(At agreement value less amount received and
unmatured hire charges)
Under Hire Purchase Agreements
Considered Good

Considered Doubtful 148,652 160,798
148,652 160,798
Less: Provision (148,652) (160,798)
Other Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Shares and Debentures [Refer Annexure No. 1] 298 28
Stock of Mobiles and Accessories 1,078
1,376 28
Total 1,376 28

27



212

213

2.14

DS
1T

Trade Receivables

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Unsecured

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

Less : Provision for doubtful debts

Others — Considered Good

2,032
(2,032)

6,403
(6.403)

Total

Cash and Bank Balances

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 133 388
Cheques, drafts and stamps on hand 312 22
Balances with banks
in current accounts 3,078 1,710
in deposit accounts 1,000 -
4,523 2,120
Other bank balances
Deposit with banks maturing between 3 to 12 months 1,259 295
Margin Deposit with banks 55,000 55,000
[pledged as security against working capital loan]
56,259 55,295
Total 60,782 57,415

Short Term Loans and Advances

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Demerger receivables (secured)
Considered good
from Others
from wholly owned subsidiaries [Refer Note (a)(ii)]
Considered doubtful
from wholly owned subsidiaries [Refer Note (b}]
from others

Less: Provision

36,490 37,690
4,145 5,397
20,248 23,988
101,005 101,006
161,888 168,081
(121,253) (124,994)
40,635 43,087
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Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31, 2012
Secured Loans

Considered good - -
Considered doubtful 27,990 68,870
27,990 68,870
Less: Provision (27,990) (68,870)

Unsecured Loans
Considered good 1,006 2,121
Considered doubtful 34,675 34,696
35,681 36,817
Less: Provision (34,675) (34,696)
1,006 2,121
Other Receivables 150 —
LIC Group Gratuity Fund Asset {net) 1,823 1,708
Total 43,614 46,916

Notes:
a) D_emerger receivable:

i)

i)

Demerger receivable represents Rs.36,490 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.37,690 thousands) from
MPL Enterprises Ltd. pursuant to the scheme of arrangements sanctioned by Hon'ble High Courts of
Karnataka and Madras vide their Orders dated April 09, 1999 and August 25, 2000 respectively. The
balance is considered good for recovery in the opinion of the management, as the value of the property
vested in MPL Enterprises Ltd. is adequate.

Investment of Rs.999 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.999 thousands) and demerger receivable of
Rs.4,145 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.5,397 thousands) being amount due from Manipal Properties
Limited a subsidiary, on account of scheme of arrangements sanctioned by Hon’ble High Courts
of Karnataka and Madras vide its Order dated April 09, 1999 and August 25, 2000 respectively is
considered good for recovery in the opinion of the management, as the present market value of the
property vested in Manipal Properties Limited is adequate and in view of long term involvement with the
said Company.

b) Demerger receivables considered doubtful includes Rs.7,812 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.7,797
thousands) due from Manipal Hotels Ltd. and Rs.12,436 thousands (March 31, 2012 : Rs.16,191 thousands)
due from Manipal Properties Ltd., the wholly owned subsidiary companies.

Other Current Assets Rs. in Thousands
Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31, 2012
Interest accrued on term deposits 2,690 3,601
Accrued Income 136 —
Total 2,826 3,601

Revenue from operations Rs. in Thousands
Particulars 201213 2011-12
Hire purchase income 25 6
Interest on loans and advances 1,850 444
Bad debts recovered 13,633 8,770
Service charges and commission 1,950 2,876
Sale of Mobiles and Accessories 14,169 -
Total 31,627 12,096
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Other Income

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Dividend received from
Non Current Investments 1,213 1,968
Others 146 90
Interest on term deposit 5,557 5,182
Other interest 4,262 66
Profit on sale of owned / leased assets 1,024 17
Profit on sale of shares and securities 1,582 -
Rent Received 1,277 1,221
Sundary balances written back 7,535 -
Excess provision for gratuity reversed [Refer 112 1,365
Note No. 2.28 (c) (vi)]
Excess provision for non performing assets
written back 61,314 3,021
Less: Bad Debts written off 58,099 3,215 562 2,459
Miscellaneous income 25 19
Total 25,948 12,387
Purchases Rs. in Thousands
Particulars 201213 2011-12
Purchase of trade goods
Mobiles and Accessories
Handsets 2,366 -
Rechargeable Vouchers 2,209 -
Electronic Charge 10,028 -
Others 48 -
Total 14,651 -
Charges in inventories of traded goods Rs. in Thousands
Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Stock at the begining of the year
Mobiles and Accessories - -
Shares and securities 28 -
(a) 28 -
Stock at the end of the year
Mobiles and Accessories 1,078 -
Shares and securities 298 28
{b) 1,376 28
Total (a—Db) (1,348) (28)
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2.20 Employee Benefits Expense Rs. in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Salaries, wages and bonus 6,638 7,107
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer Note No. 2.28] 857 855
Gratuity - 18
Staff Welfare expenses 441 361
Total 7,936 8,341
Other Expenses Rs. in Thousands
Particulars 201213 201112
Rent, rates and taxes 1,537 1,951
Printing and stationery 205 206
Directors sitting fees 27 30
Travelling and conveyance 1,225 1,550
Postage, telegram and telephones 379 455
Insurance 14 28
Repairs and Maintenance:
Buildings 658 425
Vehicles 40 45
Others 369 421
Advertisement and Business Promotion 313 307
Legal and Professional Charges 4,493 448
Auditors Remuneration:
Audit Fees 140 138
Tax Audit Fees 28 28
Certification 28 28
Service Charges 196 145
Loss on sale of Assets - 13
Sundry balances written off 116 —
Sundry Expenses 197 192
Total 9,965 6,410
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2.22 Finance Costs

2.23

2.24

2.25

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Interest on working capital loan from bank 4,741 4,892
Interest on delay in payment of taxes 3 468
Bank charges 70 82
Total 4,814 5442

Depreciation and amortization expense

Rs. in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Depreciation on tangible assets 353 361
Depreciation on investment property 1,106 1,106
Less: Transfer from revaluation reserve (754) (754)
Total 705 713

Calculation of Earning per Share

Rs. in Thousands

::. Particulars 201213 2011-12
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10 10
Net Profit available for equity shareholders 33,452 3,605
(Rupees in thousands)
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares (Nos.) 13,026,700 13,026,700
Basic / Diluted EPS of Rs.10/- each (in Rs.) 2,57 0.28

In pursuance to the Scheme of Arrangement (the ‘scheme’) under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka (‘the Court’) vide its order dated October 15,
2004 and filed with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on December 30, 2004 (i.e. effective date) the
Company has implemented the scheme and accordingly repaid all instaliments of debentures, deposits
and subordinated debts which were claimed in terms of the scheme. The Company has filed an affidavit
on August 31, 2010 before the Court stating that the scheme has been successfully implemented and the
Court has passed an Order stating that Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Court on October 15,
2004 is fully complied by the company.

The accounts have been prepared on going concern basis, considering the successful implementation of
the Scheme of Arrangement as mentioned above, the Company’s foray into fee based activities and its
intention to start fresh NBFC business subject to approval from Reserve Bank of India.
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Rs. in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Guarantee issued in favour of bankers

Claims against the company/disputed liabilities not
acknowledged as debt/liabilities

Income Tax *

320
1,058

102,404

320
1,058

130,333

* Income tax demand represents Rs.102,404 thousands (March 31, 2012 : Rs.102,404 thousands) in respect of
Block assessment held for the period from 1987-88 to 1997-98 following the Order of Hon’ble High Court of
Karnataka in respect of disallowance of depreciation on leased assets and other disallowances. The Company
has filed an Special Leave Petition (SLP) with Hon’ble Supreme Court of India against the Order of Hon’ble
High Court of Karnataka. The Company has deposited Rs.46,232 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.40,222
thousands) against the said demanded Tax. The Company has offered one of its immovable property as
security which is free of any encumbrances. Based on the decisions of the Appellate authorities/Courts and
the interpretations of other relevant provisions, the Company has been legally advised that the demands
raised on account of block assessment and disallowance of depreciation would get vacated and accordingly
no provision is considered necessary.

Deferred Tax

The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Asset as per AS 22 on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, constituting, mainly of carry forward losses,
excess depreciation claimed in Income tax and provision for doubtful debts, as a matter of prudence.

Employee Benefits

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15, Employee Benefits (revised 2005), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [the ‘revised AS 15'].

The disclosures as required under the revised AS 15 are as under:

Brief description of the Plans :

a) The Company has two schemes for long-term benefits such as Provident Fund and Gratuity. In case
of funded schemes, the funds are recognised by the Income Tax authorities and administered through
trustees / appropriate authorities. The Company’s defined contribution plan is Employees’ Provident
Fund (under the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952) The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company’s
defined benefit plan is Gratuity.

b) Contribution to Provident fund, pension fund and other funds under Employee benefits expenses are

as under: .
Rs. in Thousands
::; Particulars 201213 2011-12
i. Provident and pension fund 561 573
i. | Employee state insurance 186 214
Total 747 787
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¢) Based on statement received from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), the following table sets
forth the status of the Gratuity Plan (Funded) of the Company and the amounts recognised in the
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rs. in Thousands

~ Particulars 2012-2013 2011-12
i. | Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,989 3,064
Current service cost 134 137
Interest cost 239 245
Actuarial loss / (gain) {59) 46
Benefits paid {69) (503)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,234 2,989
il. | Change in fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,697 4,755
Expected return on plan assets 426 410
Actuarial gain / (loss) - -
Contributions by employer 3 35
Benefits paid {69) (503)
Closing fair value of plan assets 5,057 4,697
iii. |Actual return on plan assets 426 410
V. | The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair
value of total plan assets are as follows:
Investment with Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
v. | Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Present Value (PV) of obligations as at year end 3,234 2,989
Less: Fair value of plan assets as at year end 5,057 4,697
Net (asset) / liability recognised (1,823) (1,708)
vi. | Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 134 137
Interest on defined benefit obligation 239 245
Expected return on plan assets (426) (410)
Past service cost - -
Net actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in the current year {59) 46
Total expense (112) 18
vii. | Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 9.07% 8.62%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50%
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::,' Particulars 2012-2013 2011-12

Mortality table LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)

Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
viii. | Experience adjustments

Defined benefit obligation 3,234 2,989

Plan assets 5,057 4,697

Deficit / (sumplus) (1,823) (1,708)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {59) 46

Experience adjustments on plan assets - -

ix. | Excess provision for gratuity reversed as on Apnil 1, 2011 -

Opening defined benefit obligation as per Books - 4,429

Opening present value of defined benefit obligation as per LIC _ (3,064)

Statement !

Excess provision reversed in the statement of profit and loss - 1,365

x. | Data for defined gratuity benefit obligation and fair value

of planned assets are as under

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of 3,234 2,989

the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,057 4,697

Net (assets) / liability at the end of year (1,823) (1,708)
Notes:

i) The Company’s liability towards gratuity to employees is covered by a group policy with LIC of India and
contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss.

ii) Based on the above allocation and the prevailing yields on these assets, the long term estimate of the
expected rate of retum on fund assets has been arrived at. Assumed rate of return on assets is expected
to vary from year to year reflecting the returns on matching government bonds.

2.29 List of Related Parties with whom transactions are taken place during the year:

Name of the Party Relationship
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries Manipal Hotels Limited

Manipal Properties Limited

Associate Companies ICDS Securities Limited

The Canara Land Investments Limited
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited

Key Management Personnel and their Relatives T. Mohandas Pai — Chairman and Whole-time
Director

T. Ashok Pai — Relative of Director
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Details of the Transactions : Rs. in Thousands
Sl. .
No. Particulars 201213 2011-12

a. [ Reimbursement of expenses during the year
— Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
Manipal Properties Limited 93 731
Manipal Hotels Limited 15 14
— Associate Companies
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited 18 -
b. | Advances recovered during the year
— Wholly owned subsidiaries
Manipal Properties Limited 5,100 2,753
c. | Investment in Equity Shares during the year
— Associate Companies
ICDS Securities Limited - 11,908
d. [ Rent/Interest/Finance Charges received from related parties
— Wholly owned subsidiaries

Manipal Properties Limited (Net of Income reversal of Rs.3,102 345 356
thousands. March 31, 2012: Rs. 3,205 thousands.)

e. | Outstanding balances

Duse from / (To)

— Wholly owned subsidiaries
Manipal Hotels Limited (gross) 7,812 7,797
Manipal Properties Limited (gross) 16,581 21,588

— Associate companies
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited 41 23
f. | Provisions made on balance receivable including income reversal
— Wholly owned subsidiaries
Manipal Hotels Limited 7.812 7,797
Manipal Properties Limited 24,867 26,037
g. | Provision for Diminution in value of Investments
— Wholly owned subsidiaries
Manipal Hotels Limited 500 500
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The Company has identified two reportable segements viz Financial Services (recovery of loans and
advances) and Sale of Mobiles and Accessories. Others include Marketing of the insurance products of
life and general insurance companies. Segments have been identified and reported taking into account
nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting systems.
Accordingly segment reporting disclosures as envisaged in Accounting Standard (AS-17) on Segmental
Reporting, issued by the ICAI are given below:

Rs. in Thousands

201213
Particulars gi::l'i‘::l Trading
(Recovery Activities Others Total
activities)
Segment Revenue
External Tumover 15,508 14,169 1,950 31,627
Inter segment turnover - - - -
Net Turnover 15,508 14,169 1,950 31,627
Segment Results (5,230) (883) 1,017 (5,096)
Interest income 9,819
Dividend Income 1,359
Other Income 14,770
Profit before tax 20,852
Taxes (12,600)
Profit after tax 33,452
Other Information
Segment Assets 176,525 1,171 484 178,180
Segment Liabilities 145,817 - - 145,817
Capital Expenditure 142
Depreciation and Lease 705
Equalisation (net)
Non-cash expenses 116
Provisions written back (net) (3,215)
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Notes:

a) The Company has identified and applied reportable segment as per AS 17 — “Segment Reporting”
for the first time during the year. In view of the same, the disclosure of corresponding previous year
figures in respect of segment reporting is not given.

b) Interest expenditure and interest income of company are not shown separately for financial services
since the same is integral part of financial business.

c) Geographical segment is not relevant for the company since it is not involved in exports.
231 The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for

office premises and same has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to
Rs. 297 thousands (March 31, 2012 : Rs.253 thousands).

2.32 In the opinion of the management, loans and advances, current and non current assets are good and
recoverable and no provision is considered necessary.

2.33 Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been reworked, regrouped, reclassified and
rearranged to conform with those of the current year.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants Sd/-

Firm Registration No.: 101720W T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sa/- Sar- Sar-

C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao Bharath K. Nayak

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai Place : Manipal
Date : May 29, 2013 Date : May 29, 2013
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AS AT 31T MARCH, 2013

(Amount in Rupees)

1. | Name of the Subsidiary Company Manipal Hotels Ltd. | Manipal Properties Ltd.
I:e Financial year period of the Subsidiary Company ended March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013
3. | Date from which they became Subsidiary Company 5-Aug-92 23-Dec-00
4, Numbgr of equity shares r_le_ld by ICDS Ltd. at the end of the 50000 9,989
financial year of the Subsidiary Company
5. |Extent of interest of Holding Company at the end of the
financial year of the subsidia?'y pany 100% 99.89%
6. |The net aggregate amount of the Subsidiary Company
Profit/(Loss) so far as concerns the members of the holding
company
1. Not dealt with in the Holding Company’s accounts
a) For the financial years ended 315t March, 2013 (15,652) (344,747)
b) For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary
Company since it became the Holding Company’s 1,222,059 255,898
Subsidiary
2. Dealt with in the Holding Company’s accounts
a) For the financial years ended 315 March, 2013 N.A. N.A.
b) For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary
Company since it became the Holding Company’s N.A. N.A.
Subsidiary
7. |Changes in the interest of Holding Company; between the
end of the financial year of the subsidiary and 315t March, N.A. N.A.
2013
a) Nos. of Shares
b) Extent of holding
8. |Material Changes between the end of the financial year of
the Subsidiary Company's Financial Statement ended 318t N.A. N.A.
March, 2013
a) Fixed Assets N.A. N.A.
b) Investments N.A. N.A.
c) Money Lent N.A. N.A.
d) Money borrowed other than those for meeting Current NA NA
Liabilities T T

Note: In Manipal Properties Limited,11 Shares held by Manipal Hotels Limited which is 100% Subsidiary of ICDS Limited.

Sd/- Sd/- S
T. Mohandas Pai Bharath K. Nayak H. N. S. Rao
Chairman & Whole-time Director Director Director

Place : Manipal
Date : 29th May, 2013
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Disclosure:

si Disclosure of Loans and Advances and Investments in its own As at
No. In the accounts of shares by their Subsidiaries, Associates (as certified by the 31-03-2013
' Management) as required by Clause 32 of Listing Agreement.
1 |Parent (ICDS Ltd.) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
subsidiaries by name and amount Nil
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
associates by name and amount Nil
Loans and advances in the nature of loans where there is
(i) no repayment schedule or repayment
beyond seven years or Nil
(ii) no interest or interest below Section 372A of Companies
Act by name and amount Nil
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and
amount
2 |Subsidiary Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
Manipal Hotels Ltd. parent by name and amount Nil
Manipal Properties Ltd.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
associates by name and amount Nil
Loans and advances in the nature of loans where there is
(i) no repayment schedule or repayment
beyond seven years or Nil
(i) no interest or interest below Section 372A of
Companies Act by name and amount. Nil
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and
amount Nil
3 | Parent (ICDS Ltd.) Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and
subsidiary company, when the company has made a loan or
advance in the nature of loan Nil
Note : The demerger receivables and reimbursement of expenses and advances which are not in the nature of loans
have not been considered. The amounts considered, if any, are net of the provisions done as per prudential
norms. The details of demerger receivables are disclosed in the related party transactions elsewhere in the
Balance Sheet.
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
(A) Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 20,852 3,605
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 705 713
Interest expenses 4,741 4,892
Loss on sale/Discard of fixed assets - 13
Profit on sale of fixed assets (1,024) (17)
Profit on sale of shares and securities (1,582) -
Interest on term deposits (5,557) (5,182)
Dividends (1,359) (2,058)
Excess Provision written back (61,314) (3,021)
Excess provision for gratuity reversed (112) (1,365)
Sundry balances written back (7,535) -
Sundry balances written off 116 -
Bad debts written off 58,099 562
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,030 (1,858)
Adjustments for change in working capital
(Increase )/ decrease in loans & advances and other assets 5,762 27,419
(Increase )/ decrease in Inventories (330) 862
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables and other liabilities (1,535) (4,929)
Cash generated from operations 9,927 21,494
Less: Interest paid (5,882) (8,155)
Income Tax (paid)/refunded (6,258) (11,445)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (2,213) 1,894
(B) Cash Flow from Investing activities
Purchase of Fixed and Leased Assets (142) (341)
Sale of Fixed & Leased Assets 1,555 20
Purchase of Investments - (11,908)
Sale of Investments 1,582 -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted deposits/bank balances (2,964) 3,312
Interest received 6,468 3,918
Dividend received 1,359 2,058
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 7,858 (2,941)
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
(C) Cash Flow from Financing activities

Proceeds/(redemption) of debentures - (16)
Proceeds/(redemption) of Subordinated debts - (5)
Proceeds/(payment) of Public Deposits (154) (111)
Increase/(decrease) of Bank Borrowing (3,088) (61)
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (3,242) (193)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,403 (1,240)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 2,120 3,360
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 4,523 2,120

Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the
Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statements as referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act, 1956.

2. Previous figures have been reworked, regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants Sd/-

Firm Registration No.: 101720W T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao Bharath K. Nayak

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place: Mumbai Place: Manipal

Date : May 29, 2013 Date : May 29, 2013
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF ICDS LIMITED

(As required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of

Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998)
(Notification No. DNBS 167/CGM (OPA) — 2003 dated March 29, 2003)

(Rs. in "000)

Particulars

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

1)

Liabilities side:
Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
a) Debentures : Secured
: Unsecured *
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)
b) Deferred Credits
c) Term Loans
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
e) Commercial Paper
f) Public Deposits *
g) Other Loans (subordinated debts, working capital loans) *

16,455

11,754
48,628

16,455

11,754
3,815

2)

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of

interest accrued thereon but not paid):

a) In the form of Unsecured debentures

b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there
is a shortfall in the value of security

c) Other public deposits *

11,754

11,754

Assets side:

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

3)

Break up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables (other
than those included in (4) below):
a) Secured

b) Unsecured

1,006

4)

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation
loans counting towards EL/HP activities:
i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
a) Financial lease
b) Operating lease
i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hire
b) Repossessed Assets
iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities:
a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

b) Loans other than (a) above

488

* Public deposits/NCD’s/Subordinated Debts along with interest accrued upto 15-07-2002 are payable as per the scheme of
arrangement under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka vide its
order dated 15th Qctober, 2004 and filed with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on 30t December, 2004.
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(Rs. in '000)

Particulars

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

Break-up of Investments:

1. Quoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity
b) Preference
ii) Debentures and Bonds
ii) Units of Mutual Bonds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others
2. Unquoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity
b) Preference
ii) Debentures and Bonds
ii) Units of Mutual Bonds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others
Long Term Investments: (net of provisions)
1. Quoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity
b) Preference
ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of Mutual Bonds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others
2. Unquoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity
b) Preference
i) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of Mutual Bonds

deposits

Current Investments: (Stock in trade considered)

iv) Government Securities (excluding interest accrued)
v) Others: Interest accrued but not due on investments/

10,120

2,826

6)

debtors: (refer note no. 1)

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances including

Amount (net of provisions)

Category Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other related parties - 41 41
2. Other than related parties - 52,616 52,616
Total 52,657 52,657
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7) |Investor group-wise classification of all invests (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted):
Market Value/ | Book Value
Category Br_eak-up or (Net_of
fair value of Provisions)
NAV
1. Related Parties
a) Subsidiaries (lower of fair value or cost ) 999 999
b) Companies in the same group
c) Other related parties (lower of fair value or cost } 23,336 23,336
2. Other than related parties (lower of fair value or cost) 9,121 9,121
Total 33,456 33,456
(8) | Other Information
Particulars Amount
i) Gross Non-Performing Assets 338,860
a) Related Parties -
b) Other than related parties 338,860
ii) Net Non-Performing Assets -
a) Related Parties -
b) Other than related parties -
iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 1,515
Note:

1) The demerger receivables of Rs.2,95,29 thousands (Rs.41.45 thousands net of provisions) from Manipal
Properties Ltd., Rs.3,64,90 thousands from MPL Enterprises Ltd. are not shown in the above statement (item
no. 6 & 8) as the same are not in the nature of loans and advances in the opinion of the management in view of

2) Loans and advances, stock on hire are shown at net of provisions.
3) Matured Debentures are not shown as public deposits in line with the disclosure requirements.

prudence.

4) Stock in trade of shares are shown at cost or market value whichever is less and are considered as current

investments.
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Annexure No. 1

Details of Stock of Shares and Debentures as on March 31, 2013 Rs. in Thousands
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Name of the Company Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
(Rs. in ’000) (Rs. in "000)
Quoted Shares:
EPIC 100 - 100 -
HDFC Bank Ltd. 180 - 36 -
Kirloskar Electric Ltd. 1,000 1 1,000 1
Panama Petro 200 - 200 -
Reliance Capital Ltd. 21 - 21 -
Reliance Capital Ltd. 800 1 800 1
Reliance Capital Venture 37 - 37 -
Reliance Communications 447 - 447 -
Reliance Communications 750 1 750 1
Reliance Industries Limited 894 1 894 1
Reliance Industries Limited 1,500 2 1,500 2
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Ltd. 5,950 6 5,950 6
Twinstar Industries 100 - 100 -
Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd. 1,000 1 1,000 1
Sesa Goa 49,791 50 11,791 12
Perfect — Octave Media 200 - 200 -
Uniworth Ltd. 750 1 750 1
Libord Infotech 200 - 200 -
Piramal Glass 7 - 7 -
GTN Industries 200 - 200 -
Aspinwall & Company Ltd. 232,800 232 - -
Absolute Aromatics Ltd. 1,600 2 1,600 2
Sub Total 298,527 298 27,583 28
Unquoted Shares:
Adam Comsof 200 0 200 0
ICES Software 200 0 200 0
Cimmco Birla Limited 6 0 6 0
J K Pharmachemicals 100 0 100 0
Jalpac India 100 0 100 0
Mukesh Steels Limited 100 0 100 0
Namtech Elect 100 0 100 0
Nova Iron 240 0 1,000 0
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March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Name of the Company Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
{Rs. in ’000) (Rs. in "000)
Unquoted Shares:

Murugappa Holding Ltd. (Parry Agro Inds) 66 0 33 0
Precision Elect 25 0 25 0
Sanghi Poly 200 0 200 0
SM Dyechem Limited 6 0 6 0
Summit Securities Ltd. 1 0 1 0
CMS Infotech 500 0 500 0
Adhunik Synthetics Ltd. 2,000 0 2,000 0
Anjana Explosives Ltd. - 0| 133,900 0
ATN Ind. 100 0 100 0
Genelac Ltd. 2,000 0 2,000 0
Golden Shrimp Hatchery Ltd. 320,000 0| 349,900 0
Jayant Vitamins Ltd. 563 0 563 0
Parsurampuria Synthetics Ltd. 624 0 624 0
Patheja Forgings & Auto Parts Mfr. Ltd. 10,000 0 10,000 0
Praman Capital Market Services Lid. 191,500 0| 191,500 0
The Peria Karamalai Tea & Prod. Co. Ltd. 1,000 0 1,000 0
The Vijaykumar Mills Ltd. 8,000 0 8,000 0
Wartyhully Estates Ltd. 1,100 0 1,100 0
Datar Switch Gears 100 0 100 0
Mega Centre Super Markets Ltd. 20,000 0 20,000 0
Nagarjuna Granites Ltd. 100 0 100 0
Pampasar Distilleries Ltd. 100 0 100 0
Universal Print Systems Ltd. 5,000 0 5,000 0
Sub Total 564,031 0| 728,558 0

Quoted Debentures:
Jayant Vitamins Ltd. 5,403 0 5,403 0
Sub Total 5,403 0 5,403 0
Grand Total 867,961 298| 761,544 28

Notes:

1. Some of the shares and debentures and other securities mentioned above were initially pledged as security by
the borrower against loans and advances granted by the Company. Same have been taken into stock at nominal
value after adjusting the loans against which shares where pledged.

2. The stock of shares and debentures are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. In case of
shares / debentures where market value is not available are taken at nominal value.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ICDS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial

Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of ICDS Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as ‘the Group’) which comprise the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013
and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Groupin accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Basis of Qualification

i. In so far as it relates to the operations and
financial position of the subsidiaries included
in these consolidated Financial Statements,
the qualification made by respective statutory
auditors are as follows:

In the case of Manipal Hotels Limited (MHL),
the Auditors have expressed their inability
to opine on the ultimate recoverability of
short term loans and advances of Rs.94,89
thousands (net of provision) as stated in Note
2.14(b) of the financial statements. Auditors
have further commented that a provision for
the same would have eroded the Networth of
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the MHL and thereby raising a doubt over the
“Going Concern Assumption”. The accounts of
the MHL, however have been prepared on a
“going concern basis” in view of Management
perception as stated in Note 2.14(b).

. Ifthe observation made in paragraph (i) above
had been considered, the profit of the group
for the year under consideration would have
been Rs.209,18 thousands as against the
reported profit of Rs.304,07 thousands and
the accumulated losses would have been
Rs.684,19 thousands as against reported
accumulated loss of Rs.589,30 thousands.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, except
for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:-

a) inthe case of the consolidated Balance Sheet,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2013,

in the case of the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended
on that date; and

in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, of the cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

b)

c)

MITED

GI1C

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements/financial
information of subsidiaries, whose financial
statements/financial information reflect total
assets (net) of Rs.418,50 thousands as at March
31, 2013, total revenue of Rs.49,27 thousands and
net decrease in cash flows amounting to Rs.9,30
thousands for the year ended on that date and an
associate in which the share of loss of the Group
for the year is Rs.30,47 thousands, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements/financial information have
been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management of
the Company and our opinion in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the report
of other auditors.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W

Sd/-

C.D. Lala

Partner

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013

Rupees in Thousands

. March 31, March 31,
Particulars Note No. 2013 2012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2.01 130,267 130,267
Reserves and surplus 2.02 9,144 (20,509)
139,411 109,758
Non current liabilities
Other long term liabilities 2.03 37,125 37,017
37,125 37,017
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings 2.04 44,813 47,901
Trade payables 2.05 1,606 9,759
Other current liabilities 2.06 64,166 66,497
110,585 124,157
TOTAL 287,121 270,932
ASSETS a a )
Non current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.07 32,244 33,150
Non current investments 2.08 85,620 89,783
Long-term loans and advances 2.09 51,403 33,158
Other non-current assets 2.10 2,297 297
171,564 156,388
Current assets
Inventories 2.1 1,376 28
Trade receivables 212 441 388
Cash and bank balances 2.13 61,956 59,519
Short term loans and advances 2.14 48,958 51,008
Other current assets 2.15 2,826 3,601
115,557 114,544
TOTAL 287,121 270,932
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1&2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101720W

Sar- Sa/-
C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao
Partner Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board
Sa/-
T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Bharath K. Nayak
Director

Place : Manipal
Date : May 29, 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2013

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars Note No. 201213 2011-12
Revenue from operations 2.16 31,282 11,740
Other income 217 27,660 15,780
Total Revenue 58,942 27,520
Expenses
Purchases 2.18 14,651 -
Changes in inventories of traded goods 219 (1,348) (28)
Employee benefits expense 2.20 7,936 8,341
Other Expenses 2.21 11,012 7,350
Finance costs 2.22 4,814 5,441
Depreciation and amortization expense 2.23 869 877
Total expenses . 37,934 21,981
Profit before tax 21,008 5,539
Tax expense
Current tax 154 47
Reversal of excess provision of tax of earlier year - (12,600) -
Profit for the period after Tax 33,454 5,492
Share of profit/(loss) of associate (3,047) (1,419)
Profit for the year ) 30,407 4,073
Earnings per equity share of par value Rs.10/- each 7 o 7
Basic & Dilutive (in Rupees) 2.27 2.57 0.31
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1&2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101720W

Sar- Sd/-
C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao
Partner Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Bharath K. Nayak

Place :
Date

Director

Manipal

: May 29, 2013

51



&ICDS

LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Company overview

ICDS Limited (“the Company”/“the Parent Company”) was incorporated on October 21, 1971 and registered as a Non
Banking Financial Company (NBFC). The Company had filed the Scheme of Arrangement during August 2002, and
stopped its fund based business and surrendered its certificate of registration as Non Banking Finance Company
to RBI. The Company is presently concentrating on the recovery of its dues and repaying its liabilities and is also
engaged in marketing of the insurance products of life and general insurance companies. The Company is diversifying
into more fee based activities.

1. Significant accounting policies

1.01 Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements related to ICDS Limited and all of its subsidiary companies and
associates (herein after collectively referred to as ‘Group’) have been prepared on the following basis:

i) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses after fully eliminating inter company balances and transactions and unrealised profits or
losses in accordance with the Accounting Standard 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ii) Investments in Subsidiaries are eliminated and differences between the cost of investment over the
net assets on the date of investment, or on the date of the financial statements immediately preceding
the date of investment in subsidiaries are recognised as goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may
be.

ii) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsidiary, and the proportionate
carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss as the profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries

iv) In case of Associates, where the Company directly or indirectly through its Subsidiaries holds 20%
or more of equity investments in associates are accounted for using ‘Equity Method’ in accordance
with Accounting Standard - 23 “Accounting for investments in associates in consolidated financial
statements” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Company accounts for its
share in the change in the net assets of the associates, post acquisition, after eliminating unrealised
profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its associates to the extent
of its share, through its Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent such change is attributable to the
Associates’ Statement of Profit and Loss, based on the available information. The difference between
the cost of investment in the associates and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares
in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case
may be.

v) As per equity method, if the Company’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds the carrying
amount of the investment, the Company ordinarily discontinues recognising its share of further losses
and the investment is reported at nil value. Additional losses are provided for to the extent that the
investor has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate to satisfy obligations of
the associate that the investor has guaranteed or to which the investor is otherwise committed. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the investor resumes including its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of net losses that have not been recognised.

vi) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same
manner as the Company’s stand alone financial statements.
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Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates are accounted as per Accounting Standard — 13
“Accounting for Investments”.

Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements

a) The subsidiary companies considered in consoclidation are:

Name of the company Country of Extent of holding & Voting Power
Incorporation | As on March 31,2013 | Ason March 31, 2012
a) Manipal Hotels Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%
b) Manipal Properties Ltd. India 99.89% 99.89%

b) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates used in the consolidation
are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Parent Company, i.e., Year ended March 31,
2013.

Other significant accounting policies

These policies are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the Company’s separate

financial statements.

Notes to financial statements

2.01

Share Capital Rupees in Thousands
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Authorised Capital
35,000,000 [March 31, 2012 : 35,000,000] Equity Shares of 350,000 350,000
Rs.10 each
15,000,000 [March 31, 2012 : 15,000,000] Preference Shares 150,000 150,000
of Rs.10 each
500,000 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
13,026,700 [March 31, 2012 : 13,026,700] Equity Shares Rs.10 130,267 130,267
each fully paid-up
Total 130,267 130,267
Reconciliation of number of shares
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Particulars No.of| Rupeesin No. of Rupees in
Shares| thousands Shares thousands
Equity shares :
Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,026,700 130,267 13,026,700 130,267
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 13,026,700 130,267 | 13,026,700 130,267

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

The Company has two classes of shares referred to as equity shares and preference shares having par
value of Rs.10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has
not issued any preference shares as on March 31, 2013.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
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Restrictions on the distribution of dividends:

The Board shall, propose to the shareholders the dividend payable out of free reserves and
profits of the Company. Upon such recommendation shareholders shall declare dividends i) all
such dividends & profits shall be paid to shareholders in their existing shareholding pattern and
ii) any such dividend or other distribution shall be based on profit generated by the Company or on

appropriate basis permitted by the applicable laws.

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares specifying the

number of shares held

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Name of the Shareholder No. of % of [ No. of Shares % of
Shares held Holding held Holding

Teaching Fratemity & Education Trust 2,104,000 16.15% 2,104,000 16.15%
(including shares held by its trustee
Dr H. Shantaram)
Music & Fine Arts Education Trust (including 1,476,600 11.34% 1,476,600 11.34%
shares held by its trustee
Sri T. Ranga Pai)
Mahendra Girdharilal 1,215,023 9.33% 1,215,023 9.33%
The Academy of General Education 868,488 6.67% 868,488 6.67%
Life Insurance Corporation of India Ltd. 677,001 5.20% 677,001 5.20%

Reserves and surplus

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Securities Premium

Opening Balance 33,334 33,334
Add: Additions during the year — —
Closing Balance 33,334 33,334
Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance 35,494 36,248
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss (754) (754)
Closing Balance 34,740 35,494
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance (89,337) (93,410)
Less: Profit/(Loss) for the current year 30,407 4,073
Closing Balance (58,930) (89,337)
Total 9,144 (20,509)

Other long term liabilities

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Lease/Rent Deposits 37,125 37,017
Total 37,125 37,017
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Secured Loans
Working Capital Loans from Banks 44,813 47,901
Total 44,813 47,901
Notes:

Nature of security

The above working capital loan is secured by deposit with banks amounting to Rs.55,000 thousands

(March 31, 2012: Rs.55,000 thousands).

Terms of repayment
The above loan is repayable on demand.

Trade payable

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Due to Micro and small enterprises® - -
Due to other than Micro and small enterprises 1,606 9,759
Total 1,606 9,759

* The Management is in a continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations
under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). There are
no balances due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per the information available with the Company and
representation made in this regard.

Other current liabilities Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Public Liabilities
Unclaimed
Amount due to Investor Education and Protection Fund (a)
- matured deposits 1,094 -
- interest on matured deposits 453 -
- matured debentures 973 -
- interest on matured debentures 99 -
- matured subordinated debts 214 -
- interest on matured subordinated debts 21 -
- Other public liabilities 397 -
Others
- matured deposits - 1,248
- interest on matured deposits 10,207 10,913
- matured debentures - 973
- interest on matured debentures 15,383 16,583
- matured subordinated debts - 214
- interest on matured subordinated debts 3,580 3,388
- Other Public Liabilities (b) 29,664 30,345
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Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Other payables 25 -
Book overdraft - 731
Rent deposits 1,525 1,525
Other current liabilities 368 379
Statutory dues 163 198
Total 64,166 66,497

Notes:

a) Public Liabilities amounting to Rs.3,251 thousands (includes unencashed stale cheques) relating to Deposits,

Non Convertible debentures and Subordinated debts which were lying after adjusting the loans borrowed
against them and unclaimed for more than seven years is payable to Investor Education and Protection fund.
These Public liabilities are payable against the investments which have completed seven years from the due
date on which these investments were scheduled to be paid as per the Scheme of arrangement sanctioned
by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. The first such payment became due for remittance to IPEF on
July 31, 2012.

b) The management is of the opinion that the due date for remittance of unclaimed public liabilities starts after

seven years from the due date of the last installment of the instrument as per the Scheme, accordingly
the management considers Rs.31,34 thousands outstanding with regard to the first installment is not due
for payment to IEPF. The Company is in the process of approaching instrument holders by way of public
notification through local news paper and widely circulated English news papers and individual letters to
each of them. The Company is yet to remit the same to IEPF and will remit subsequent to the due date to
be mentioned in the paper notification. The company will remit the balance (unclaimed/unencashed) public

liabilities thereafter.

Non current investments

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Long term Investments (at cost)
Investment property 2
Cost of building given on operating lease 67,847 67,847
Less: Accumulated depreciation 17,664 16,558
Net Block 50,183 51,289
Investments in government securities
National Savings Certificate ° - 10
- 10
Investments in quoted, fully paid-up Equity Shares®
Associate Company
ICDS Securities Ltd. [Refer Note No. 2.30] 26,316 29,363
[1,423,350 (March 31, 2012 : 1,423,350) shares of face value
Rs.10/- each]
Others
Lingapur Estates Ltd. 1,734 1,734
[153,392 (March 31, 2012 : 153,392) shares of face value
Rs.10/- each]
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited 9,181 9,181
[449,163 (March 31, 2012 : 449,163) shares of face value
Rs.10/- each]
37,231 40,278
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Investments in unquoted, fully paid-up Equity Shares®
Associate Company

Blue Cross Builders & Investors Ltd. [Refer Note No. 2.30]
[99,970 (March 31, 2012: 99,970) shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each]

Others

Development Co-op. Bank Ltd. 18 18

[1,200 (March 31, 2012 : 1,200) shares of face value Rs.10/-

each]

Manipal Housing Finance Syndicate Ltd. 9,103 9,103

[729,000 (March 31, 2012 : 729,000) shares of face value

Rs.10/- each]

9,121 9,121

Less: Provisions for diminution in value of investments ¢ 10,915 10,915

Total 85,620 89,783
Aggregate value of quoted investments (net of provision) 4 26,316 29,363
Market Value of quoted investments ¢ 26,316 29,363
Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of provision) ¢ 9,121 9,121

Notes:

2 |nvestment property includes shares of the face value of Rs.511/- in Co-operative Housing Society.
b National Savings Certificates of the face value of Rs. Nil thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.10 thousands)

have been lodged with Government Departments.

¢ Market price of the Quoted shares has been taken at face value, in the absence of trading in stock

exchanges during the year.
4 Details of Provisions for diminution in value of investments.

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Lingapur Estates Ltd. 1,734 1,734
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited 9,181 9,181
Total 10,915 10,915

Long term loans and advances

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Rent and other deposits 496 1,089
Less: Provision - (154)

496 935
Advance taxes (net of Provisions) 50,861 32,223
VAT Input Credit 46 -
Total 51,403 33,158
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012

Deposit with banks maturing after 12 months 2,297 297

Total 2,297 297
Inventories

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Stock on Hire

(At agreement value less amount received and unmatured hire
charges)

Under Hire Purchase Agreements
Considered Good

Considered Doubtful 148,652 160,798
148,652 160,798
Less: Provision (148,652) (160,798)
Other Inventories
(Valued and as certified by the Management)
Shares and Debentures [ Refer Annexure No. 1] 298 28
Stock of Telephone sets 1,078
1,376 28
Total 1,376 28

Trade Receivables

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Unsecured
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Considered Good

Considered Doubtful 2,032 6,403

Less : Provision for doubtful Advances (2,032) (6,403)
Debts outstanding for a period not exceeding six months

Considered Good 441 388
Total 441 388
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.13 Cash and bank balances Rupees in Thousands

214 Short term loans and advances .
Rupees in Thousands
Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Demerger receivables (secured)
Considered good
from Others 36,490 37,690
Considered doubtful
from others 101,005 101,006
137,495 138,696
Less: Provision (101,005) (101,006)
36,490 37,690
Secured Loans
Considered good - -
Considered doubtful 27,990 68,870
27,990 68,870
Less: Provision (27,990) (68,870)
Unsecured Loans
Considered good [Refer Note (b)] 10,495 11,610
Considered doubtful 39,375 39,396
49,870 51,006
Less: Provision (39,375) (39,396)
10,495 11,610
Other Receivables 150 -
LIC Group Gratuity Fund Asset (net) 1,823 1,708
Total 48,958 51,008

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 133 388
Cheques, drafts and stamps on hand 312 22
Balances with banks
in current accounts 4,252 3,814
in deposit accounts 1,000 —
5,697 4,224
Other bank balances
Deposit with banks maturing between 3 to 12 months 1,259 295
Term Deposit with banks 55,000 55,000
[pledged as security against working capital loan]
56,259 55,295
Total 61,956 59,519
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a) Demerger receivable:
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i) Demerger receivable represents Rs.36,490 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.37,690 thousands) from
MPL Enterprises Ltd. pursuant to the scheme of arrangements sanctioned by Hon'ble High Courts of
Karnataka and Madras vide their Orders dated April 09, 1999 and August 25, 2000 respectively. The
balance is considered good for recovery in the opinion of the management, as the value of the property

vested in MPL Enterprises Ltd. is adequate.

iiy The Company has provided for Rs.7,812 thousands (March 31, 2012 : Rs.7,797 thousands) towards
amount recoverable from Manipal Hotels Limited and Rs.12,436 thousands (March 31, 2012 : Rs.16,191
thousands) towards amount recoverable from Manipal Properties Ltd. of its subsidiaries. The amount
provided in the company books have been written back in the consolidated statement of accounts in the

absence of any write back in subsidiary books.

b) Unsecured Short term Loans includes Rs.9,489 thousands(March 31, 2012 : Rs.9,489 thousands) which
represents advances given on Capital account by Manipal Hotels Ltd. (“MHL” / subsidiary company) to a
venture in hotel industry, the balance of which is subject to confirmation. The capital advance as stated in
the balance sheet (net of provisions) is considered good and recoverable. The subsidiary Company’s ability
to continue as a “Going Concern” largely depends upon the recovery of the aforesaid amount. The accounts
have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis on the assumption that the company will be able to recover

the advance.

Other current assets

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 [ March 31, 2012
Interest accrued on term deposits 2,690 3,601
Accrued Income 136
Total 2,826 3,601

Revenue from operations

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Hire purchase income 25 6
Interest on loans and advances 1,505 88
Bad debts recovered 13,633 8,770
Service charges and commission 1,950 2,876
Sale of Mobiles and Accessories 14,169 -
Total 31,282 11,740

Other income

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12

Dividend received from
Non Current Investments 1,213 1,968
Others 146 90
Interest on term deposit 5,557 5,182
Other interest 4,348 80
Profit on sale of owned / leased assets 1,024 17
Profit on sale of shares and securities 1,582 -
Rent 6,118 5,542
Sundry Balances written back 7,535 -
Excess provision for gratuity reversed [Refer Note No. 2.28 (c)] 112 1,365
Excess provision for non performing assets written back - 1,518
Miscellaneous income 25 18
Total 27,660 15,780
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Purchases Rupees in Thousands
Particulars 201213 2011-12
Purchase of traded goods
MTS Mobiles and Accessories
Handsets 2,366 -
Rechargeable Vouchers 2,209 -
Electronic Charge 10,028 -
Others 48 -
Total 14,651 -

Changes in inventories of traded goods

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Stock at the beginning of the year

MTS Mobiles and Accessories - -

Shares and securities 28 -
(a) 28 -

Stock at the end of the year

MTS Mobiles and Accessories 1,078

Shares and securities 298 28
(b) 1,376 28

Total (a-b) {1,348) (28)

Employee benefits expense

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Salaries, wages and bonus 6,638 7,107
Contribution to provident and other funds [ Refer Note No. 2.28 ] 857 855
Gratuity - 18
Staff welfare expenses 441 361
Total 7,936 8,341

Other Expenses

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Rent, rates and taxes 1,848 2,262
Printing and stationery 205 206
Directors sitting fees 27 30
Travelling and conveyance 1,225 1,560
Postage, telegram and telephones 379 455
Insurance 14 28
Repairs and Maintenance:
Buildings 812 433
Vehicles 40 45
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 201112
Others 369 421
Advertisement and Business Promotion 313 307
Legal & Professional Charges 4,523 475
Auditors Remuneration:
Audit Fees 163 161
Tax Audit Fees 28 28
Certification 28 28
Service Charges 196 145
Loss on sale of Assets - 13
Bad Debts written off (net) 525 -
Sundry balances written off 116 562
Sundry Expenses 201 201
Total 11,012 7,350

Finance Costs

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 201213 2011-12
Interest on working capital loan from bank 4,741 4,892
Interest on delay in payment of taxes 3 467
Bank charges 70 82
Total 4,814 5,441

Depreciation and amortization expense

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Depreciation on tangible assets 517 525
Depreciation on investment property 1,106 1,106
Less: Transfer from revaluation reserve (754) (754)
Total 869 877

In pursuance to the Scheme of Arrangement (the ‘scheme’) under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka (‘the Court’) vide its order dated October
15, 2004 and filed with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on 30t December, 2004 (i.e., effective
date) the Company has implemented the scheme and accordingly repaid all instalments of debentures,
deposits and subordinated debts which were claimed in terms of the scheme. The Company has filed an
affidavit on August 31, 2010 before the Court stating that the scheme has been successfully implemented
and the Court has passed an Order stating that Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Court on

October 15, 2004 is fully complied by the company.

The accounts have been prepared on Going concern basis, considering the sucessful implementation of
the Scheme of Arrangement as mentioned above, the Company’s foray into fee based activities and its
intention to start fresh NBFC business subject to approval from Reserve Bank of India.
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2.25 Contingent liabilities and commitments

2.26

2.27

2.28

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars March 31, 2013 | March 31, 2012
Contingent liabilities:
Guarantee issued in favour of bankers 320 320
Share_ in :)utstandlng bank guarantees furished by banks by 10,120 8,720
Associate
Claims a.ga!r.\s.t the company/disputed liabilities not acknowledged 1,334 1334
as debt/liabilities
Income Tax ** 102,404 130,333

*k

ICDS Securities Limited (“associate”) has given Bank guarantees to National Stock Exchange in
respect of regular operation which are issued against 50% margin comprising of 25% of Term deposit
margin and 25% collateral security of land and building. Amount restricted to the extent of shares held
by the Company in associate.

Income tax demand represents Rs.102,404 thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.102,404 thousands) in
respect of Block assessment held for the period from 1987-88 to 1997-98 following the Order of
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka in respect of disallowance of depreciation on leased assets and other
disallowances. The Company has filed an Special Leave Petition (SLP) with Hon’ble Supreme Court
of India against the Order of Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. The Company has deposited Rs.46,232
thousands (March 31, 2012: Rs.40,222 thousands) against the said demanded Tax. The Company
has offered one of its immovable property as security which is free of any encumbrances. Based on
the decisions of the Appellate authorities/Courts and the interpretations of other relevant provisions,
the Company has been legally advised that the demands raised on account of block assessment
and disallowance of depreciation would get vacated and accordingly no provision is considered
necessary.

Deferred tax

The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Asset as per AS 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, constituting, mainly of carry forward losses,
excess depreciation claimed in Income tax and provision for doubtful debts, as a matter of prudence.
There are no Deferred Tax Liabilities or assets in Subsidiary Companies.

Calculation of Earning per share

Sl. No. Particulars 201213 201112

a. Nominal value per share (in Rupees) 10 10

b. Net Profit available for equity share holders 33,454 4,073
(Rupees in thousands)

c. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares (Nos.) 13,026,700 13,026,700

d. Basic / Diluted EPS of Rs.10/- each (in Rupees) 2.57 0.31

Employee Benefits

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15, Employee Benefits (revised 2005), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [the ‘revised AS 15'].
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The disclosures as required under the revised AS 15 are as under:

Brief description of the Plans :

a)

b

~

The Company has two schemes for long-term benefits such as Provident Fund and Gratuity. In case
of funded schemes, the funds are recognised by the Income Tax authorities and administered through
trustees / appropriate authorities. The Company’s defined contribution plan is Employees’ Provident
Fund (under the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952) The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company’s
defined benefit plan is Gratuity.

Contribution to Provident fund, pension fund and other funds under Employee benefits expenses are

as under: ,
Rupees in Thousands

Sl. No. Particulars 201213 2011-12
i. Provident and pension fund 561 573
ii. Employee state insurance 186 214
Total 747 787

c)

Based on statement received from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), the following table sets
forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rupees in Thousands

:‘I)'_ Particulars 201213 201112
i. | Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,989 3,064
Current service cost 134 137
Interest cost 239 245
Actuarial loss / (gain) (59) 46
Benefits paid (69) (503)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,234 2,989
ii. |Change in fair value of assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,697 4,755
Expected return on plan assets 426 410
Contributions by employer 3 34
Benefits paid (69) (502)
Closing fair value of plan assets 5,057 4,697
iii. | Actual return on plan assets 426 410
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Sl
No.

iv. | The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair
value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Investment with Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

v. | Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of obligations as at year end 3,234 2,989
Less: Fair value of plan assets as at year end 5,057 4,697
Net (asset) / liability recognised (1,823) (1,708)
vi. | Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 134 137
Interest on defined benefit obligation 239 245
Expected return on plan assets (426) (410)
Net actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in the current year (59) 46
Total expense charged to statement of profit and loss (112) 18

vii. | Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 9.07% 8.62%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50%
Mortality table LIC (1994-96) | LIC (1994-96)
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

viii. | Experience adjustments

Defined benefit obligation 3,234 2,989
Plan assets 5,057 4,697
Deficit / (surplus) (1,823) (1,708)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (59) 46

ix. | Excess provision for gratuity reversed as on April 1, 2011

Opening defined benefit obligation as per Books - 4,429
Opening present value of defined benefit obligation as per - (3,064)
LIC Statement

Excess provision reversed in the statement of profit and - 1,365
loss
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Rupees in Thousands

:‘I)' Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
x. |Data for defined gratuity benefit obligation and fair value of
planned assets are as under :
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of 3,234 2,989
the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,057 4,697
Net (assets) / liability at the end of year (1,823) (1,708)
Notes:

i) The Company'’s liability towards gratuity to employees is covered by a group policy with LIC of

if)

2.29

Associate Companies/Institutions

Key Management Personnel and their

India and contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Based on the above allocation and the prevailing yields on these assets, the long term estimate of
the expected rate of return on fund assets has been arrived at. Assumed rate of return on assets
is expected to vary from year to year reflecting the returns on matching government bonds.

List of Related Parties with whom transactions are taken place during the year:

ICDS Securities Limited
The Canara Land Investments Limited
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited

T. Mohandas Pai — Chairman and Whole-time Director

Relatives

T. Ashok Pai — Relative of Director

Details of the transactions :

Rupees in Thousands

:‘I)'. Particulars 201213 201112
a. |Investment in Equity Shares
— Associate Companies
ICDS Securities Limited - 11,908
b. | Reimbursement of Expenses
— Associate Companies
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited 18 -
c. |Outstanding balances as at 31-03-2013
Due from / (To)
— Associate companies
Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited 41 23
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Details of valuation of investments in Associate Companies as required by AS-23 “Accounting for Investments

in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statement” are as follows:

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 2012-13 201112
Name of the Associate : ICDS Securities Limited
Ownership interest (%) 40.00% 40.00%
Original cost of investments 23,336 23,336
Amount of Goodwill / (Capital Reserve) (net) 1,138 1,138
Share of post acquisition profits 2,980 6,027
Carrying cost of investments 26,316 29,363
Name of the Associate : Blue Cross Builders and Investors Limited
Ownership interest (through Manipal Properties Limited) (%) 47.60% 47.60%
Original cost of investments 1,001 1,001
Amount of Goodwill * - -
Share of post acquisition loss * (1,001) (1,001)
Carrying cost of investments ** - -

*

The Company has not provided for goodwill in view of share of loss of an associate exceeds the carrying

amount of the investment. Since the Company’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the carrying
amount of the investment, the Company has not recognised its share of further losses and the investment
is reported at nil value. Additional losses are provided for to the extent that the Company has made

payments during the year.

*%

Valuation of investments in Bluecross Builders and Investors Limited on the basis of provisional Financial

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the absence of Audited financial statements of the

Associate Companies.

Consolidated Segment Information

The Company has identified two reportable segments viz. Financial Services and Others
Rupees in Thousands

Financial
Revenue Services Trading Rent on Others Elimina- Consoli-
(Recovery | Activities Premises tions dated

activities)
External Sales 15,508 14,169 4,841 1,950 36,468
23,213 - 4,335 - 27,548
Inter segment Sales 345 - - - (345) -
1,859 - - - (1,859) -
Total Revenue 16,853 14,169 4,841 1,950 (345) 36,468
25,072 - 4,335 - (1,859) 27,548

RESULT

Segment result (5,230) (883) (277) 1,001 3,578 (1,811)
(3,701) - 233 (15) (2,423) (5,906)
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Financial
Revenue Services Trading Rent on Others Elimina- Consoli-
(Recovery | Activities Premises tions dated
activities)
Interest Income 9,905
5,262
Dividend Income 1,359
2,058
Other Income 11,555
4,125
Profit hefore tax 21,008
5,539
Income Taxes 12,446
(47)
Share of loss of associate (3,047)
(1,419)
Net Profit 30,407
4,073
Financial
. Services Tradin Rent on Elimina- Consoli-
Other Information (Recovery activities | Promises | OM™® | fions dated
activities)
Segment Assets 198,124 1,171 30,602 10,008 239,905
192,515 41,166 - 233,681
Segment Liabilities 145,817 - 1,887 6 147,710
228,190 1,904 - 230,094
Capital Expenditure 142
Depreciation and Lease 705 164 - 869
Equalisation (net) 713 164 877
Other Non Cash expenses 116
Excess provision written back 3,215 - - (3,740) (525)
(net)
4,386 - - (1,503) 2,883

a) Interest expenditure and interest income of company are not shown separately for financial services since
the same is integral part of financial business.

b) Geographical segment is not relevant for the company since it is not involved in exports.
¢) Previous year figures given in italics.
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2.32 The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises and
same has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs.297 thousands (March 31, 2012 :
Rs.253 thousands).

2.33 In the opinion of the management, loans and advances, current and non current assets are good and
recoverable and no provision is considered necessary.

2.34  Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been reworked, regrouped, reclassified and rearranged
to conform with those of the current year.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants Sd/-

Firm Registration No.: 101720W T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

C.D. Lala H. N. S. Rao Bharath K. Nayak

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place: Mumbai Place: Manipal
Date : May 29, 2013 Date : May 29, 2013
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2013

Rupees in Thousands

Description 201213 2011-12
(A) Cashflow From operating actlivities
Profit before tax 21,008 5,539
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 869 877
Interest expenses 4,741 4,892
Loss on sale/Discard of fixed assets - 13
Profit on sale of fixed assets (1,024) (17)
Profit on sale of shares (1,582) -
Interest on term deposits (5,557) (5,182)
Other interests (86) (14)
Dividends (1,358) (2,058)
Excess Provision written back (57,574) (1,518)
Excess provision for gratuity reversed (112) (1,365)
Sundry balances written back (7,535) -
Sundry balances written off 116 -
Bad debts written off - 562
Provision/write offs 58,099 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,004 1,729
Adjustments for change in working capital
[{l ) D in Trade ivabl (53) (105)
(Increase)/ decrease in short term loans & advances and other assets 5,762 27,419
[{l ) d inlr (330) 862
Ir /(d ) in Trade Payables and other liabilities (6,537) (5,567)
Cash generated from operations 8,846 24,338
Less: Interest paid (5,882) (8,155)
Income Tax {paid)/refunded (6,193) (11,221)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (3,229) 4,962
(B) Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of Fixed and Leased Assels (142) (341)
Sale of Fixed & Leased Assels 1,555 20
Sale of Investments 1,582 -
Purchase of Investments - (11,908)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted deposits/bank balances (2,984) 3,312
Interest received 68,554 3,932
Dividend received 1,359 2,058
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 7,944 (2,927)
(C) Cash flow from Financing activities
P ds/(Redemption) of deb - (16)
Proceeds/(Redemption) of Subordinated debts - {5)
Proceeds/(Payment) of Public Deposits (154) (1,359)
Increase/(Decrease) of Bank Borrowing (3,088) (61)
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (3,242) (1,441)
Net || /(D ) in Cash equival (A+B+C) 1,473 594
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 4,224 3,630
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 5,897 4,224

Notes: 1. The above cash flow statement has baen prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statements as referred

to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
2. Previous year figures have baen reworked, regrouped, rearranged and ifi h Y.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah

Chartered Accountants

Fimm Registration No.: 101720W

Sd/- Sd/-
C.D. Lala H.N. S. Rao
Pariner Director

Membership No.: 35671

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

T. Mohandas Pai
Chairman & Whole-time Director

Sd/-
Bharath K. Nayak
Director

Place : Manipal
Date : May 29, 2013

71



MANIPAL HOTELS LIMITED

Twenty fifth Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2013

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

$Sri T. Mohandas Pai

$ri T. Satish U. Pai

Dr. Ramdas M. Pai

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty fith Annual Report and Audited
Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31% March, 2013.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the ysar under report company did not do any worthwhile buginess and incurred a
net logs of Rs.15,652/-.

DIRECTORS
During the year Mr. T. Mohandas Pai retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for reappointment.

Parliculars regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption : Nil
During the year Company's foreign exchange eamnings and foreign exchange outgo: Nil.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors report that

a) accounting had been followed in preparation of accounts under
report.

b) and prudent policies have been selected and applied which

gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Profit and
Loss account of the company for the ysar under report.

proper and sufficient care had been taken for of

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding
the assets of the Company.

d) accounts are prepared on a going concem basis.

AUDITORS

M/s Pai Nayak and A Udupi, the auditors of the Company
will retire at the ensuing Annual Genenal Meeting and eligible for reappointment.

<,

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd- Sd/-
Place : Manipal T. MOHANDAS PAI T. SATISH U. PAl
Date : 25-05-2013 Dirsctor Director

AUDITORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
To the Members of MANIPAL HOTELS LIMITED, CHENNAI

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the financial of Manlpal Hotels Limited (“the
Company"), which comprige the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

M s Iblitty for the Fli

is for the p of these financial statements that give a

lrue and falr view of the ﬁnancial poslllon financial performance and cash flows of the

the A referred to in sub-section (3C)

of Section 211 of the Companies Acl, 1956 (the Act’). This responsibility includes the

design, and of internal conlrol relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether dus to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Inglitute of Charlered Accountants of India. Thoge Standards require that we comply with
athical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial e p depend on the auditor's
the of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or efror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers intemal control relsvant to the Comp and fair pi of
the financial statements in order to design audit f that are approp in the
circumstances. An audit also |ncludes 1] Ihe 1ess of policies
used and the made by as well
as g the overall p of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We are unable to comment on the uiimats recoverability of the amounts stated in Note 8
to the Balance Sheet under the head “Short term loans and advances” smouriting in total
Rs.94,88,931 (net of provisions). (P. Y. Rs.94,88,931 net of provisions). The net worth of
the Company would have been fully eroded, had the Company madse full provision for
these amounts and thereby raising a doubt about the Company fo continue as a going
concem. The account, however have been prepared on a ‘going concem basis” in view of
management perception as detailed in Note No. 8.03 of the Financial Statements.

Oplnlon

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the effect of the matter dsscnbed In the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph,

the financial give the by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity wnlh the accounting principles generally accepted

in India:

a) inth Sheel, of th fthe C {March31,2013;

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year snded on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order") izsued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have all the and which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Shest, Statemsnt of Profit and Loss, and Cash Fiow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow

Statement comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-gection {3C) of
Saction 211 of the Companies Act, 1958

on the basis of written d from the as on March
31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

For Pal Nayak & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 009080S

Sd~-
Ananthanarayana Pai K.
Partner (M.No.: 24541)
Place of Signature : Manipal Place : Manipal
Date : 25-05-2013 Date : 25-05-2013

ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
{lssued to the Members of MANIPAL HOTELS LIMITED)
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF EVEN DATE

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2003, issued by the Company Law
Board under Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks
as we and g to the i and given to
us, we further report that ©

i} The Company does not own any fixed assets and therefore the question of
commenting on the fixed assets, as required under Clause 4(j) of the Order does
nol arise.

The Company does nol hold any inventory al any time during the year under

audit. Therefore the provisions of Clause 4(ii) of the Order not applicable to the

Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

granted/taken any loang, secured or unsecured toffrom companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,

1956. Therefore the provisions of Clause 4(iii) of the Order are not applicable o the

Company.

In our opinion and g to the i and given to us,

there are adequate intemal conlrol procedures commensurate with the size of

the Company and the nature of its business, in respect of the expenses incurred
and there are no continuing failures to comect major weakness in intemal control
system.

In respeci of transactions entered in tha register maintained in pursuancs of Section

301 of the Companies Act, 1856.

a) To the best of our knowledge and beliel and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no transactions that needed to be entered
into the register.

b) For the reasons given in sub-clause (a) above, the provisions of sub-clause
(b) of Clause (v) of Para 4 of the Order ig not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any amouni as deposits from the public. Therefore

para 4 (vi) of the order not applicable.

The Company is nol a listed company. The paid-up capital and reserves of the

company does not exceed Rs.50 lakhs at any time during the year. The average

annual tumaver of the Company for the 3

financial years, does not exceed Rs. 5 Crores. Therehre the provisions of clause

4(vii) of the order relating to intemal audit not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies

Act, 1956 is not applicable to the Company, since no such records prescribed by

the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respeci of Statutory

and other dues, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory

dues as detailed in Clause 4(ix)(a) of the order, with the appropriate authorities.

According to information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed

liabllites remaining unpaid, on account of Income Tax/ Sales Tax/ Wealth Tax /

Service Tax / Custom Duty / Excise Duty / Cess and therefore giving information as

required under Clause 4(ix}(b) of the order does not arise.

The Company doss not have accumulated losses as at the end of the year and

the Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year under audit & in

iiy

iy

iv,

Y,

Vi

vil)

vill)

x)

X,
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the immediate preceding financial year. Had the Company mads full provision (as
stated under the paragraph “Basis of Qualified Opinion” in the main Report) for the

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2013
Note

amounts stated therein, it would have accumulated losses more than its Net worth. Particulars No. 2012413 201112
xi) Onthe basis of audit conducted by us and according to the information & explanations "
given to us, the Company has not availed loans from Banks & Financial Institutions. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Therefore the question of reporting therein as required by para 4(xi) of the order 1. Revenus:
does not arise.
xil) A ing to the ion and given to us, the Company has not Revenue from Operations - -
gnanied loans or advances on the basm of security by way of pledge of ghares, Other Income - -
and other . Th the question of reporting therein as —_— —_—
required by para 4(xii) of tha ordsr does not arise. TOTAL REVENUE - - =
xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or benefit fund/soci Il. EXPENSES
Therefore the provisions of Clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order
2003 are not applicable to the Company. Other Expenses 7 ﬂ ﬂ
xiv) The Company is nol dealing in shares, securites, debentures and other TOTAL EXPENSES _ 15,852 15,001
the of giving as required under para E = =
4(xiv) of the order does not arise. However the Company has maintained proper ::'f_l;o(r:m) B;:“': 5:?1?::’""' {15,652) (15,001)
records for shares held as investmenis and the same have held in its own name. Y
xv) A g to the and given to us, the Company has not Exceptional items - -
given any guarantee for Ioans taken by others from banks or financial institutions. Profit (Loss) before
xvi) On the basie of verification of books of accounts and according to the information Extraordinary Itams and Tax {15,652) (15,001)
and explanations given to us, the Company has not avalled any term loans.
Therefore the question of commenting on utilization therein does not arise. Extraordinary Items - -
xvii) A ing to the ion and given to us and on the basis of overall Profit (Loss) before tax {15,652) (15,001)
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on
short-term basis prima facis have nol besn used for long-term investment. Tax expense - -
xvii) The Company has not made preferential allotment of shares fo parties and Profit (Loss) for the year {15,652)
companies covered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Earnin Equity Sh Equi = =
Act, 1956 during the ysar. arming por £ q;"'y hore (Equty o
xix) The Company has not issued any deb Therefc the ion  of share of Rs.10/- each)
commenting on creation of securily therson does not arise. Basic in Rs.Ps. (Negative) (0.31) (0.30)
xx) The Company has not raised monies by public issues during the year and hence the " .
and verification of end use of such monies does not arige. Diluted in Rs.Ps. (Negalive) (©.31) (0.30)
0d) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and OTHER DISCLOSURES TO °
explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company was notliced or reported ACCOUNTS
during the year. The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For Pal Nayak & Assoclates - - As per our report of even date
Chartered Accountants T. MOHANDAS PAI T. SATISH U. PAl For Pal Nayak & Assoclates
Registration No.: 009090S Director Director Charterad Accountants
Sd/- Firm Registration No.: 0080908
Ananthanarayana Pai K. Sa~
Partner (M.No.: 24541}
Place of Signature : Manipal Place : Manipal CA ANANLHQNARGYNAN%;‘;?‘
Date : 25-05-2013 Dals : 25052013 ! artner (M.No. 024541)
Place : Manipal Place : Manipal
BALANCE SHEET A8 ON 31-03-2013 Date : 25-05-2013 Date :25-05-2013
Particulars ':::. 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 20122013 2011-2012
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES : Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
1. Shareholders’ Funds A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
a) Share Capital 1 5,00,000 5,00,000 Ns.l Profit/(Logs) before tax (15,652) (15,001)
b)Reserves & Surplus 2 12,06407  17,06407 1222059 17.22,059 Adjustment required . - - =
2. Current Liabilities glf:rll:to‘:g profit before working capital (15,852) (15,001)
Other Ci t Lliabiliti 3 787,765 78,17,785 78,02,565 78,02,565 . y
er Lurrent Liabllties A for changes in Working Capital
TOTAL 95,24,172 95,24,624
11 ASSETS : Z Increase/{Decrease) in other Current Liabilities 15,200 14,773
1. Non-current assets Cash generated from operations (452) (228)
Non-current investments 4 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 Taxes Refund/(Paid) - - __ -
Net Cash used In operating actlvities (452) (228)
2. Current assets B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : - -
a) Cash and Cash 5 34,141 34,593 C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : - —
Equivalents Net Increase / (Decreass) In Cash and Cash (452) (228)
b} S:°" temloansand o 9489931 9523,072 0488931 9523524 Equivalents
T ;Tx:"m 9524172 9504 624 Cash and Cash (Opening Balancs) 34,593 34,821
_99,24172 _95,24,624
OTHER DISCLOSURES TO g = = E = Cash and Cash Equlvalents (Closing Balance) 34,141 34,593
ACCOUNTS Cash Flow statement is being prepared under “Indirect Method™ as laid down under
The notes are an intsgral part of these financial statements Accounting Standard 3 of Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008.
Sa/- Sd/- As per our reporl of even date Sd/- Sdr- As per our report of even date
T. MOHANDAS PAI T. SATISH V. PAI For Pai Nayak & Associates T. MOHANDAS PAl T. SATISH U. PAl For Pai Nayak & Associates
Director Dirsctor Charierad Accountsnts Director Dirsctor Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0080908 Firm Registration No.: 008080S
Sd/- Sa/-
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K. CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Partner (M.No. 024541) Partner (M.No. 024541)
Place : Manipal Place : Manipal Place : Manipal Place : Manipal

Date : 25-05-2013 Date :256-05-2013

Dats : 25-05-2013 Date :25-05-2013




MANIPAL HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 318T MARCH, 2013
31-03-2013

3. 31-03-2012
Rs. Rs.
NOTE 1:
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capita! :
26,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 2,50,00,000
4,00,000 Redesmab'e Cumu'ative 4,00,00,000
Preference Shares of Rs.100 sach
__8.50,00000
Issued, Subscribed & Pald-up Caphtal: —
50,000 (P. Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of 500,000
Rs.10/- each fu y pald-up
5,00,000 5,00,000

Note 1.01: Reconclllation of number of shares

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares {Rs.) (Re)
Equity Shares at the baglnning of the year 50,000 5,00,000 50,000 5,00,000
Ad]ustments during the year (Additions/ - - - -
Deductions)
Equity Shares st the ciose of the year 50,000 5,00.000 50,000 500,000

Note 1.02: Righta, preferances and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one ciass of equity shares having a par va've of Ra.10 per share. Each shareha!'der is ellgible
for one vota per each share heid. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approva' of
the sharehoiders In the ensulng Annual Genera' Meeting, excepi In the case of Interim dividend. In the event of
‘iquidation, the aquity shareho'ders are e'igible Lo receive the remaining assets of lhe Company (after distribution
of a preferentia’ amounts) in proportion o Lheir sharehoiding. The Company has not issued any Preference
Shares 1l | the date of the Ba'ance Sheset. Therefore the question of disciosing the retevant Information In respect
of preference shares does not arlse.

As st March As at March 31,
31,2013 2012
Note 1.03: Shares held by holding Gompany "(“R‘;“)'“ A:"R:‘)'"
Equity Sharea
50000 (P.Y. 50000) Equity Shares of 5,00,000 5,00,000

Rs.10/- each he'd by hoiding co.
ICDS Ltd. and its nominees
Nots 1.04: Detalis of shares held by sharehoiders holding more than 5% of the aggrogate shares In the
company
As at March 31, 2013
Numaber of

As at March 31, 2012
Number of

Equity sharss Shares Percentage Shares Percentage
1CDS Ltd. being ho!ding company and 50000 100.00 50000 100.00
nominess
31-03-2013 31-03-2012
NOTE 2: Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
RESERVES & S8URPLUS
Surplus In Stetement of Profit & Loss
Ba'ance al he beginning of the year 12,22,059 12,37,060
Profit (Hoss) for the Year 15,852] 15,001
12,06407 12,22.059
Less: Appropriations. = 12,08.407 = 12,22 059
12,06,407 1222059
NOTE 3: ) ) -
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{Also refer Note No. 3.01)
Amount dus to Re'ated Party:
to Holding Company (ICDS Limited) 78,12,147 77,986,947

Llabl Ifles for expenses 5618

78.02,566

5618

_18,1T.765

Note 3.01: 111“ re ace o dues o Micro, Small & Medium Emerpdu- at any time during Lhe year, in Lhe absence
lod registerad dea'sr with the Company as per the provisions of the Micro, Sma'l and Medlum

Emnrpﬂus Developmeni Acl, 2006. Hence the further disciosure requirements s required under
Micro, Sma/| & Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2008 and a'so as per Schedu's VI to the
Companies Act, 1856 does not arize.

N "

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment n equity Instruments

Unquoted Shares (Non Lrade) (al cost}

11 Shares of Rs.100/- each he'd in Manipa! 1,100 1,100
Properties Ltd.
{PY. 11 shares of Re.100 each) 1,100 1100
‘Aggregate amount of unquoted invesimente 1,100 1,100
NOTE 5:
CASH AND CAEH EQUIVALENTS
a) Cash In hand - -

b) Ba'ance with banka
in Cument Accounts

NOTE é:

Shortterm Loans and Advances

{Unsacured)

{balance after provisions considered good)
Advances on Capita' Acoount

1.35,18.333

Less: Provision made for Doubtfu' assets 47,00,000 68,18,333 A47,00,000 88,18,333
Other Advances — 870568
94,889,031
NOTE 7:
‘OTHER EXPENSES
Lega' and Profesalona. Charges 9,582 9,071
Remuneration to Auditors
For Statutory Audit 5,618 5.618
Misce :aneous Expanses 452 312
15,652 15,001

N 3

EARNING PER SHARE

Loss as per Profil and Loss Account — A (15,652) (15,001}

Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10 each - B 50,000 50,000

Eaming per Share (A/B) in Rs. Ps. : Basic (Negalive) (0.31) (0.30)
Dluted (Negative) 0.31) (0.30)

NOTE: 8

OTHER DISCLOSURES TO ACCOUNTS (YEAR ENDING 318T MARCH, 2013)

9.01 Significant Accounting Policles :
Basls of Accounting: The sccounts have been prepared lo complyina msteria’ aspects with app'icsble
accounting principies In Indla, notified by the
Standard) ru'e, 2006 and Lhe relevanl provisions. uf Companies Act, 1956. The acoounts nre prepued
under historic cost convention and a!| significant ltems of Income & expenditure are accounted on accrua'
system of accounting.
Use of The of financla' In confirmity wiih genera y accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions Lhat affect the reported
amounts of assets & labl fties and disclosure of contingent labl fles at Ihe date of the financia’ statements
and the resu'ts of operations during the reposting period end. A'though these estimates are based upon
managements besi knowedge of current events and actions, actua' resuts cou'd differ from these
estimates. The difference between the actua' resu'ts and estimates are being recognised in Lhe period in
which the resu’ts are known/materialsed.
Inmvestments: Long Term Invesiments are siated at cosl. The Company has Lhe policy of making provisions
for diminution in the va'ue of Investments to recognise deciine, olher than temporary.
Taxea on Income: The Company has charged oft the Cument IneomeTax(llnny)lnﬂ\erﬁ!and Loss
Account. Deferred Tax Assete/Llabilfies (if any) n with -]
Standard 22. Defarred tax (it any) I8 measured based on the tax rates and the tax hvm enacted or
substantively enacted et lhe Ba'ance Sheet dabe, on the timing differences being Ihe difference between
the taxabie Income and accounting Income that originate In one perlod and are capabie of reversa' In one
or more subsequent period. Deferred tax (if any} Is subject to the of prudencs.
8egment Reporting: The Company Is operating under one sagment. Therefore Disc.osure as to segment
reporting not appiicable.
Contingent Liabllites / Assets: Invoiving degree of In
recognised when there is a present ob'igation as a resu't of past events and it Is probable that there wi bl
outflow of resources. Provisions not made In the account (which ctherwise shou'd have been made) are
disc'osed by way of appropriate nats. Contingent 'iabitiss (if any) are not recognized but are disciosed in
the notes. Contingent assets are nelther recognized nor disciosed In the financia’ statements.
Eaming per Shars: Basic eaming per share i3 ca'cu'ated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributab'a to aqulty sharehoiders (after deducting atlributab'e taxes) by the welghtad average numbar of
equily shares outstanding during Lhe year. Di'uted eaming per share, if any is computed using the weighted
average number of equity shares and di utive potentia’ aquity share outstanding during the period excapt
when Lhe resu'ts wou'd be anti-di'utive.
Cash Flow Statement: Cash F'ow Statement prepared under Indirect meihod, In the manner prescribed In
Accounting Standard 3.

9,02 Advances on capita' account represent advance to @ venture In hote! Industry, lhe ba'ance of which is
subject to confirmation. The advanca on capita’ account & other advances as stated in Lhe Ba'ance Sheet
{net of is good and at the va'ue as stated n Ihe Ba'ance Sheel. The
Company's ablity to continue as a "going concem” ‘argely depends upon the recovery of amounts as
aforeeaid. The accounts have been prepared on a "going concam’” basts. This ks based on the assumption
that the company will ba ab'e to recaver the advance on capita' account & other advances.

9.03 List of Related Parties with whom transactions are taken piace during the year:
Hoiding Company: M/s ICDS Limited Manipa'
Associate Company : Msnipa' Properies Ltd. (Subsidiary of ICDS Ltd)
Detalis of transactions are as follows:

Re. Ra.
Current Year  Previous Year
Amount received from Holding company towards meeting expenses
Mis ICDS Limited 15,200 13,567
Amount due to Ho!ding Company
M3 ICDS Limited 78,12,147 77,96,947
Invesiment he'd In Aseociate Compaenles
Manipa' Properties Ltd. — 11 equity shares of Ra.100/ each 1100 1100
by Holding The whole of the Equity Capital of the Company

{i.e. 50000 equity shares P.Y. : 50000 equity shares} held by the Holding Company M/s ICDS
Limited and its nominees.
No amount pertaining to the related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts/advances
or writtan offf written back during the year.

9.04 Proviglen for Current Tax not made, since there are no such liabllity under Income Tax Act,
1961. There are no deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assels as on 31% March, 2013,

9.05 In lhe opinion of the Board of Diractors, the assels listed under the head Curment Assets in the
Balance Sheet, have a value on realisation in lhe ordinary course of business at least equal to
the amount at which they are stated.

9.06 There are no contingent Liabilities.

9.07 Previous years amounts regrouped/rearanged wherever necessary.

Sd/- As per our report of even date
T. SATISH U. PAl For Pai Nayak & Associates
Dirsctor Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009090S
Sd/-
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Partner (M.No. 024541)
Place : Manipal
Date :25-05-2013

Sar-
T. MOHANDAS PAI
Director

Place : Manipal
Date : 25-05-2013
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MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMITED

Fourteenth Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2013 12. The Company has not issued any duplicate Share certificates during the financial
year.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 13. The Company has:
1. Sri T. Satish U. Pai N . o
2. SiH.N.S. Rao i) delivered all the certificates on of and on thereof
3. Sri K. Govindraya S. Kamalh for transfer in accordance with the provisions of the Act. »
. ii) not deposited any amount in a separate Bank Account as no dividend was
DIREC.TORS REPORT . " declared during the financial year.
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fourieenth Annual Report and Audited Balance sheet jil) not declared any dividend during the financial year - therefore no warrants were
of lhe Company as al 31% March, 2013. posted to any members.
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS iv) duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.
During the year under reporl Company eamed a total income of Rs.49,26,977/- incured an 14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly conslituted.
expenditure of Rs.51,17,714/- and incurred a net profit after tax of Rs.3,45,127/- 15. The Company has neither appointed a managing director/whole-time director nor a
DIRECTORS manager during the financial year.
During the year Mr. T. Satish U. Pai retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 18. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents during the financial year.
reappoinlment. 17. The C was not req 1o obtain any app of the Central Government,
. | Company Law Board, Regional Director, Registrar of C: and/or such
Mr. §. Panduranga Kini, Director resigned from the Board owing lo personal reasons and Mr. K. authorities prescribed under the various provisions of the Act.
Govindraya S. Kamath, appointad as an addilional direclor pursuant lo Section 260 of the C« 18. The di have disclosed their interest in other firms/companies to the Board of
Act, 1858 to holg office 'I"p'“‘: the date of m';‘"""arjfene'?' Mer:]hgjg TI';: Board reoorr;menfs his Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.
appointment as Director in the ensuing annual geney megl ng a S0 places on record Its sincer 19. The Company has not Issued any Equity shares, debeniures or other Securities
on to Iaﬂc:'ve(:o and support by Mr. 8. F Kini during his during the financial year.
tenure s Director in the Company. 20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.
Parti of energy and Nil 21. There was no redemption of preference shares or debentures during the year.
any's : N 22. There were no the to keep in abeyance the
During the year Comp: foreign exchange eamings and foreign exchange outgo: Ni rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus sharss pending registration of transfer of
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ghares.
The Company appointed Mr. S. Ramachandra Bhat, Practicing Company Secretary for the certificate 23. TheC has not i d/: d any d i any d loans
of compliance under Section 383A (1) of the Companies Act, 1956 for the financial year 2012-2013. falling within the preview of Section 58A during the financial year.
The Certificate is attached with the Directors’ Report. 24. The Company has not made any borrowings during the financial year.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 25. The Company has not given any loans or ad or given ided
The Directors report that: securities to other bodiss corporate and consequently no entries have been made in
a Applloable accounting standards had been followed in preparation of accounts under report. the register kept for the purposse.
ble and prudent ing policies have been selected and applied which gives a true 26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect fo
and fair view of lhe state of affairs of the Company and of the Profit and Loss account of the the y's regl office from one state to another during the ysar
company for the year under report. . . under scrutiny.
c) Proper and sufficient care had been taken for of records in 27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to the
Somoran: with the pi of the Ct Act, 1956 for safeg g the assets of the objects of the Company during the year under scrutiny and complied with provisions
. . of the Act.
d) Accounts are prepared on a going concem basis. 28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to
AUDITORS name of the Company during the year under scruliny.
M/s Pai Nayak and Associates, Chartered Accountants, Udupi, the auditors of the Company will retire 29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and eligible for reappointment. share capital of the Company during the year under scrutiny.
For and on behalf of the Board 30. The Company has not altered its articles of association during the financial year.
Sd- Sd- 31. There were no prosecution initiated against or show cause noticas received by the
Place : Manipal H.N. S.RAO T. SATISH U. PAI Company during the ﬂnandlal year, for offences undgr the Act. )
Date : 25-05-2013 Diractor Diractor 32. The Company has not received any money as security from its employses during the
financial year.
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 33. The Company does not have any [ at present; F of PF
To Act are not applicable.
The Membsei Place : Manipal Sa-
Manipal Properties Ltd. Date - 20-05-2013 S. Ramachandra Bhat
Regd. Office: 1st Ficor Company Secretary
Auras Corporate Centre FCS No.: 4441
No. 98A, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai CP No.: 5421
Mylapore Chennai — 600 004
ANNEXURE - A

Dear Sir,

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of Manipal Properties Ltd.

as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1856 (the Act) and the rules

made thereunder and also the provisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the COmpany for the financial year ended on 31% Manch 2013. In my opinion
d 1o the {

and to the best of m

carried out by me

an
and explanations fumished to me by the Company, its officers and agents, | certify that in
respect of the aforeseid financial year:

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this

oo

© o~

certificate, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1856 and the rules made
thereunder and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

. The Company has duly filed the forms and retums as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this
of Ci

with the R: or other authorities within the time
prescribed under the Act and the rules made thereunder.

. The Company, being a public limited Company has the minimum prescribed paid-up

capital.

. The Board of directors met 4 times on 57 May, 2012, 24™ August, 2012, 30™

November, 2011 and 30% March, 2013 in respect of which meetings proper notices
were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes
Book maintained for the purpose.

. The Company has not closed its Register of Members during the financial year.

The 14™ Annual General Meeting for the financial ysar ended on 31-3-2012 was held
on Monday, the 27™ day of August, 2012 after giving due notice to the members of
the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose.

No Extra Ordinary General meeting was held during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced any loans to its directors or persans or firms or
companies referred to under Section 295 of the Act.

The Company has not entered into any contracts falling within the purview of Section
297 of the Act.

. The Company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under Section

301 of the Aci.

. As thers has not been any instances falling within the purview of Section 314 of

the Act, the Company has not obtained any approvals from the Board of Directors,
or Central as the case may be.

Name of the Company : Manlpal Propertles Limited

Col
Nol

Pald-Up Capiltal

: U45201TN1999PLC043271
: Rs.10,00,000/-
: Rs.10,00,000/-

mpany CIN
minal Capltal

Nk N

Forms and Retumns as flled by the C:

by the (
Reglster of Members ufs 150
Copies of Annual Returns ufs 159
Minutes of Board Meelings/Annual General Mestings/Extra Ordinary General Mestings
u/s 193
Register of Contracts under Section 301
Register of Directors u/s 303
Books of Accounts under Section 209
Register of Directors Shareholdings Pursuant to Section 307 of Companies Act.

ANNEXURE-B
of G

during

pany with the
the financlal year ended on 31* March, 2013 within the ﬂlpulnhd time period without
any delay in filing:

1.

N

Form 68 in respsecl of Compliance Cerlificate u/s 383 A vide SRN P89036209 dated
24-08-2012.

. Form 23AC XBRL and 23ACA XBRL in respect of Annual Report containing Directors

Report, Auditors Report, Balance Shest and Profit and Loss Account for the financial
year ended 31* March, 2012 vide SRN Q04578084 did. 19-12-2012.

3. Form 20B in respect of Annual Return u/s 169 vide SRN P91839280 did. 25-10-2012.

4. Form 23B nolifiying acceptance of appointment to the office of Auditor was filed with
ROC Office vide SRN $13949169 dtd. 3-9-2012.

Place : Manipal Sd/-
Date : 20-05-2013 S. Ramachandra Bhat
Company Secretary
FCS No.: 4441
CP No.: 5421
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MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMITED

To Ihe Members of MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMTIED, CHENNAI

Report on the Financlal Statements

‘We have audited the financia' of Manlpal pel Lmilted (“the Company’), which
comprise the Ba'ance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Fiow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significani accounting po'icies and other explanatory information.

for the Financial
for the of Ihese financia' statements (hat give a true and fair view of
the financia' poslnon financia' performance and cash flows of the Company In accordance with Lhe Accounting
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Adl, 1956 (‘the Act”). This responsibiity
Inc'udes (he design, Implementstion and maintenanos of intema' contro! relevant to e preparation and
presentation of the financia' statements that give a lrue and falr view and are free from materia' misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error.

Audltor's Responsibllity

Our respansibi'ity is to express an opinion on these financis' statements based on our audiL We conducted our

audit In accordance with he Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartsred Accountants of India.

Those Standards require lhal we comply with ethica! requirements and pian and perform the audi to cbtaln

reasonabls assurance about whether the financia’ statements are frea from materla’ misstatemant.

An audi i Io obtai \ts and in the financia'

statements. The procedurss se'ectsd depend on the auditor’s judgment, inciuding the assessment of e risks of

materia' misstatement of the financla' statements, whaether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,

the auditor conslders [ntema' coniral re!evant to the Oompanya preparation and fair presentation of the financla’

mmema in order lo design audit that a in the An audit a'so inciudes.
he of poicies uud and e reasonab'eness of the aocounting estimstes

made by management, as wei| 68 eva'ualing the overal| presentation of the financla' statements.

We be leve that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to he bast of our information and according lo the exp/anations given to us, e financia'

statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view In

conformity with the accounting principies genera'ly accepted In India:

a) inthe case of the Ba'ance Sheet, of Lhe state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the 'oss for the year ended on thal date;

and
¢) Inthe case of the Cash Fiow Statement, of the cash flows for the year anded on that date.

R.pon on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants
. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“ihe Order”) isaued by the Centra! Govemment
of India In terms of sub-saction (4A) of Section 227 of the Act, we give In the Annexure A statement on the
matters apecified In paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.
. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
) wehave oblaineda th and i
necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by 'aw have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of thoss books;
c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash F'ow Statement dea't with by this Report are
in agresment with the books of acoount;

I

which bo the best of our d beliel were

vii) The Company is not a 'isted company. The paid-up capita' and reserves of the company does nol exceed
Rs.50 Iakhs al any time during the year. The average annua' tumover of the Company for the Immediately
preceding 3 consacutive financla' years, does nol axceed Rs.5 Crores. Therefore Ihe provisions of Clause
4(vll) of the order re‘ating to Intema’ audit net app Icable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records under Section 209(1)d) of the Companies Adl, 1956 is not applicabie to

Ine Company, since na such records prescrioed by the Cenlra' Govenment.

ix) According to the information and axplanations given to us, In respect of Statutery and other dues, the
Company has been regu'ar In depositing undisputed statutory dues as detal. ad In Giause 4(x)(a) of the
order, with the ies. According to ion and given to us, there are
no disputed 'iabiiies remaining unpaid, on account of Income Tax/ Sa'es Tax/ Wea'th Tax / Servive Tax /
Custom Duly / Excise Duty / Cess and Lherefore giving information as required under Clause 4(ix)b) of
Ihe order does not arisa.

x) The Company have accumu'ated 'osses as al the end of the year, but he same is 'asa than 50% of its
networth. The Company has not incurred cash 'osses during the financia' year under audit & In the
Immediate preceding financla' year. However the Company has Incurred !oss during the year, due lo
Ihe fact thal the Company has made dua provision for the diminution In the vaue of Invesiments. We
have considered such provision as non cash item, for the purpose of armiving at the conciusion under Lhis
paragraph.

x) On the basis of audil conducted by us and according to the information & @xplanations given io us, the

Company has not aval ad 'oans from Banks & Financia' Institutions. Therefore the question of reporting

Iherein as required by para 4(xi) of the order does not arise.

Acconding to the Information and exp'anations given to us, the Company has not granted 'oans or

advances on Ihe basts of sacurily by way of piadge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, the Company Is not a chit fund or nidhlmutua' beneflt fundisociety. Thersfora the

provisions of Clause 4(xiii} of the Companies (Auditors’ Repor) Order, 2003 are not app'icable to the

Company.

xiv) The Company is not dea'ing In shares, sacurities, debentures and olher investments. Therefore the
question of giving comments as required under para 4(xiv) of the order doos not arlse. However the
Company has maintained proper records for shares he'd as investments and the same have he!d in its
own name.

xv) According to the Information and @xplanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for
ioans taken by others from banks or fnancia’ Institutions.

xvi) On the basia of verification of books of accounts and according to Lhe information and explanations given

to ue, the Company has not avai'ed any term 'cans. Therefore the question of commenting on uti'ization

Ihereln does nol arise.

According to the Information and expianation glven to us and on the basls of overa examination of the

balance sheet of the Company, we report Lhat short term funds (of the nature "Curreni Liabi'ities”) have

been ussd for Long Term Investment In Fixed Assete & Investments to the extent of Re.2,81,10,527 (P. Y.

Rs.2,89,30.236).

The Company has not made prefarentia’ a''otment of shares to parties and companles covered In the

Regizter maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 during Lhe year.

xix) The Company has not issued any dsbenturss. Thersfore the question of commenting on creation of
sacurity Ihareon does not arise.

xx) The Company has not ralsed monles by pub.
and verification of end use of such monies does nol adse.

x) To the best of our knowiedge and be'iel and according 1o the Information and expianations given to us, no
fraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported during lha year.

il

d

b

vl

the year and hence

For Pal Nayak & Assoclates

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Fiow Statement compiy with Charterad Accountants
the Accounting Standards refermed to In sub-saction (3C) ot Section 211 of the Companles Act, 1956; Registration Number: 0090808
#) on Lhe basis of written representations received from Lhe directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, nons of lhe directors Is disqua'tfied as on March 31, 2013, from being Sd-
appointed as In tarms of ection (1) of Section 274 of the Compantes Act, 1956. Piacs of Signature : Manipa! Ananthanarayana Pal K.
Date : 25-05-2013 Partner
For Pal Nayak & Associates M. No.: 24541
Cherterad.
Registration Number: 0090905
s BALANGCE SHEET AS ON 31-03-2013
P-ace of Signature : Manipa! Ananthansrayana Pal K. Hote 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
Date : 25-05-2013 Partner Particulars No. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
M. No. 24541 1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
'
ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1. Shareholders’ Funds
(issued Lo the Members of MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMITED) a) Share Capital 1 10,00,000 10,00,000
1 UNDER THE b) Resarves & Surplus 2 {89,228) 9,10,771 2,55,898 12,55,898
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE 2. Gurrent llabllities
As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003, lasued by Lhe Company Law Board under Section
227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, and Other current llablities 3 31415575 3,33,32,031
according to Lhe information and exptanations given to us, we furlher report that : TOTAL 3.23.26,346 3.45,87,929
i) In reepect of its fixed assets, . ASSETS :
a) The Company has malnbalnad proper racords showing fu'l Inciuding detals and
) shuation :f ﬁ){a d asssts, propel " 1. Non-current assets
b) The fixed assets were physicaliy verified during the year by Ihe management in accordance with a a) Fixed Assets 4 29021298 2,91,85,184
program of verification, which in our opinion provides for physica’ verification of a'| the fixed assets al b) N t 5 - 29,021,298 10,00,950 30,186,134
reasonabts Interva's. According to the glven to us, -
et on o vettemton. 2. Current assats
c) The Company has not disposed off the Fixed Assets during the year under audit. Therefors the a) Trade Receivable 6 440,738 3,88,224
::ostlon of commenting on going concem (In consequence of disposa’ of fixed assels) doss nol b) Cash and Cash 7 11,39,617 20,868,995
ine. i
0) The Company does not ho'd any Inventory at any time during the ysar under audit. Thersfore the ) SE::le::bToans and
provisions of Clause 4(i) of the Order not applcale to the Company. advancas 8 _ 17,24683 _ 3305048 _ 19,44,576 _ 44,01,795
lii) According to the information and exp‘anations given to us, the Company has not granted/taken any 'cans, z — = —
securad or unsecured to/from compantes, firms or other parties coverad In tha registar malnbalned under TOTAL _3,23,26,348 _3,45,87,929
Section 301 of the Companles Act, 1956. Therefore the provisions of Clause 4{Il)) of the Order are not OTHER DISCLOSURES TO 15
app'icab'e to the Company. ACCOUNTS

i¥) In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given o ue, there are edequate Intema’
conlrol procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and Lhe nature of s businees for the
purchase & sa'e of fixed assets and in respect of the income eamed and there are no continuing fai'ures.
to comect major weskness in intema' conrol system.
¥) In respect of lransactions entered in he register maintained In pursuance of Section 301 of lhe Companies
Act, 1856.
a) To Lhe best of our knaw!'edge and be'iel and according to Ihe information and explanations given to us,
there are no transactions thal needed to be entered into Lhe register.
b) For the reasons given In sub-cause (a) above, the provisions of sub-c'ause (b) of Clause (v) of Para
4 of the Order Is not app lcable.
vi) The Company has nol accepted any amount a8 deposits from the pubiic. Therefore para 4 (vi} of the order
not appllcable.

The Notes are an Integral part of these financial statements As per our report of even date
Sd- Sd/-

H.N.8.RAO T. SATISH U. PAI For Pal Nayak & Assoclates
Director Director Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0090908
Sd/-
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Partner (M.No. 024541)
Place: Manipal Placa : Manipal

Date : 25-05-2013 Date : 25-05-2013




MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2013

Particulars No 201213 2011-12
1. REVENUE
Revenue from Operations ] 48,41,083 43,21,348
Other Income 10 85924 14,150
TOTAL REVENUE 49,26,977 43,35,498
Il. EXPENSES
Depreciation and amoriization 1 1,63,888 1,863,888
expense
Finance costs 12 34,46,767 35,61,135
Other Expenses 13 5,06,111 3,63,269
TOTAL EXPENSES 41,16,764 40,88,280
Profit (-Loss) Before 8,10,213 247,208
Excaptlonal and Extraordinary
Items and Tax
Exceptional items 1,000,950 =
Profit (-Loss) Before (190,737) 2.47.208
Extraordinary items and Tax
Extraordinary Items =
Profit before tax (190,737) 247,208
Tax expense
a) Curmrent Income Tax 154,390 47,105
b) Income Tax Prior Period - -
roversed
c) Defarrad Tax = 154,380 - 47,105
Profit (Loss) for the year (345,127 2,00,103
Eamning per Equlty Share 14
(Equity Share of Re.10/- each)
Basic (34.51) 20.01
Diluted (34.51) 20,01
OTHER DISCLOSURES TC 15
ACCOUNTS

The Notes are an integral parl of these financial statements As per our report of even date
Sd~- Sd/-

H.N. 8. RAO T. SATISH V. PAl For Pai Nayak & Associates
Dirgctor Dirsctor Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ne.. 0080908
Sd~
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Pariner (M.No. 024541)
Place: Manipal Place : Manipal

Dale : 25-05-2013 Date : 26-05-2013

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET A8 ON 318T MARCH, 2013

As at March As at March

31,2013 31,2012

Note 1.03: Shares held by holding Amount Amount

company {Rs.) (Rs.)
Equity shares

10000 (P. Y. 10000} Equity Shares of Rs.100/- sach 10,00,000 10,00,000

(whole of the capltal account)

(Of the above, 8989 Shares are held by Holdm?
mpany ICDS Limited and its nominees and 11
shares by Its subsldiary Manlpal Hotels Ltd.)

Note 1.04: Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate
shares in the company

As at March 31, 2013
Number of

As at March 31, 2012

Equity shares shares Percentage N';:‘:,;’:’ Percentage
ICDS Ltd. being holding com and
Ite nominesg ¥ 8 company 9,989 90.89 9,089 99.89
NOTE 2:
RESERVES & SURPLUS 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance at lhe beginning of the year 2,55,898 86,795
Proftt (-loss) for the Year (345,127) 2,00,103
(88.229) 255,898
Less: Approprialions - (89,229) - 255898
(89,229) 255898
NOTE 3:
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Also Rafer Note 3.01)
Amouni dus to Related Party:
ta Holding Company (ICDS Limited) _2,95,20,044 2,95,20,044 3,1434333 3,14,34,333
Due to Others:
Rent Deposil 15,25,000 15, 25 000
Expenses Outstanding 16,854
Other Liabllilies 344,677 18,868,531 3 58 114 18.97,698
3,14,16,575 3,33.32.031

Nots No. 3.01: There are no dues lo Micro, Sma &MoulumErmmﬂsuulanyhmadummuw L in the
absence of nolified registered dea'er with the Company a3 per Lhe provisions of the Mluu Small
and Medium Enterprises Devaiopment Act, 2008. Hence the further disciosure requirements
a8 required urder Micro, Sma'l & Medium Entarprises Dave/opmant Act, 2006 and a'so a8 per
Schedu's VI to lhe Companles Acl, 1956 does not arise.
NOTE 5:
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Equity Instruments
Unquoted shares at cost (Non Trade)
Equity shares held in Blue Cross
Builders & Investors Ltd.
80970 (P. Y. 89970) equity shares of

3103-2013 31-03-2012 Rs.10 each __10,00,950 10,00,850
Rs. Rs. Less : Provision for Diminution in the
NOTE {1: value of invesiments __10,00,850 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted =
SHARE CAPITAL invesiments 10,00,950
Authorised Capital © NOTE 8: _—
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/-sach 10,00,000 10,00.000 TRADE E
Issued,Subscribed & Paid - up : Unsecured and considered good
10,000 5P. Y. 10,000) Equity Shares of Oustanding for a pariod exceeding
Rs.100/- each fully paid-up 10,00,000 10.00,000 6 months from Lhe date Lhey due for
0.00.000 payment - =
Note 1.01: Reconciliation of number Other receivables 440,738 388224
of shares 4,40,738 3,88,224
As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012 NOTE 7:
EQUITY SHARES Numberof  Amount  Number of Amount CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
shares (Rs.) shares (Rs.) ;; g:lsh in rmb N - _
! 1l inning of th 10,000  10,00,000 10,000 10,00,000 ance an
Balance as al tha baginning of the yoar 000 10 in Current Accounts 11,39,617 20,68 995
Addtions/deletions during the year - - = = 11,39.617 20.68.985
Balance as at the end of the year 10,000 __10,00,000 10,000 _ 1000000  NOTES: —_— ——==
Note 1.02: Rights, and to shares SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Eqully Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. {Unsecured consldered good)
T T e T I
ractors Is su of the sharsholders In the ensul nual Ganeral Meatin;
except in the case of interim dn‘l’ldend In the evenl of liquidation, the e&t?% shareholders are ellglb e Advance Inc'qne Tax and TDS 17,24,693 19,44,576
to receive, the remaining assets of the Company (aher distril (Net of Provisions) T =
proporiion to their sharghalding. 17,24,693 19,44 576
NOTE: 4 : (also Refer Note 4.01 to 4.03)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at ’ As at As at ’ As at Asat As at
PARTICULARS | 3151 March, 2012 AAddtions | Sale/Tir {344 march, 2013| 31st March, 2012| Additions | Sale/Tir | 3444 March, 2013| 31st March, 2013| 31st March, 2012
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Land 2,14,65,645 - - 2,14,65,645 - - - - 2,14,65,645 2,14,65,645
Office Premises 1,00,54,350 - - 1,00,54,350 2334811] 163886 - 24,98,697 75,55,653 77,19,539
Total 3,15,19,995 = = 3,15,19.995 23,34,811] 1,63.886 = 24,98,697 2,90,21,298 2,918
Previous year 3,15,19,985 = = 3,15,19.995 21,70,825] 1,863,886 - 23,3481 2,91,85,184 2.9349.070|

Note: 4.01: Land Represent proportlionate undivided share of land for the office premises owned.
Courl of Kamataka vide order dated 25th August, 2000) transferred in its own name.

4.02: The company is in the process of getiing the property (the whole of fixed assets as detalled in the above note), acquired under the Scheme of Amrangement (as sanctioned by Hon'ble High

4,03: The management is of the opinion Lhal the carrying cost of lhe assels does not exceed its recoverable amounL Furlher the Company doas not have any information whether intemal or extemnal,
that indicates Ihal “impairment loss may have occumed”. Accordingly the question of impairment of assets does not arise.
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MANIPAL PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOS8 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2013
31-03-2013 81-03-2012

Rs. Rs.
NOTE 9: (also Refer Note below)
‘OPERATING INCOME
Rent on Premises 43,41,053 43.21,48

Note: Rent represents Income sarmed an renting of premises on ghven on
cancelable operating lease.

NOTE 10:
OTHER INCOME
Intereat on Income Tax refund 85824 14,160
85,924 14,150
NOTE 11:
AND ION
Depraciation on Tanglbie Aseets (Refer Note: 4) 163888 163,886
1,683,888 1.63.888
NOTE 12:
FINANCE COST
Interest Paid {to Ho'ding Company) 3448767 3561135
3448.767 35.61.135
NOTE 13:
OTHER EXPENBES
Lega' and Consu'tation Charges 19,430 17.668
Rates and Taxes 3,10,924 3.10924
Repalrs and Malntenancs - Bul.ding 1,54,433 8,263
Rerunssation Lo Auditora
For Statutory Audit 16,854 16,684
For Consu’tation 843 828
Misce''anaous Expenses — 3627 9002
5,068,111 3,863,269
NOTE 14:
EARNING PER SHARE
Profit (Loes) for the year as per statement of profil and 'oss account -348,127 2,00,103
Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000 10,000
Eaming per ghare (A/B) In Rs. Ps. : Basic (P. Y.: Positive) (34.51) 2001
Diuted (P. Y.: Poslive) (34.51) 2001

NOTE: 16

OTHER DISCLOSURES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2013

15.01 Significant Accounting Policles:
Bnl: of Aceounting: Tha accounts have been prepared to comply in all material aspecis

In Indla, notiflad by the
Cc:mpanlea {Accounting Standard) rule, 2008 and the relevam provislons of Companies Act,
1958. The accounts are prepared under historic cosl convention and all significanl items of
income & expenditure are accounted on accrual system of accounling.
Use of Elﬂmam Tne preparaﬁon of financlal statements In conﬂrmlly with generally
make

that affect the reported amounts ol assels & liabilities and disclosure of oonhngenl liabilities at
the dale of the financial statemants and the results of operations during the reporling period
ond. Allhough these eslimates are based upon managements best knowledge of current
events and actlons, actual resuits could differ from thess estimates. The difference batween
the actual results and estimates are belng racognised In the pariod In which the results are
known/materialised.
Fixed Assets & Dapraciation: Fixed Assets are siated at Original Cost less Depreciation.
Depreciation is provided on straight line melhod at the rates and in the manner specified in the
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.
Investments: Lcmg Term Investments are staled at cost. The Company has the policy of
making for ion in the value of decline, other than
temporary.

as an expense in the year in which they
i of ing fixed

9 H ing costs
are incurred except which are directly
agsets, lil the time such assets are ready for use, in which case the bomrowing cosls are
capitalised as part of lhe cost of the asset.

Tax on Income: The Company has charged off the Currenl Income Tax to the Profil and
Loss Accounl. Deferred Tax AssetsiLiabiliies recognised/provided in accordance wilh the
Acrounting Standard 22. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and Lhe tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, on the timing differences baing
the diffarence between the taxable income and accounting income that originate In one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period. Deferred lax is recognised,
subject to Lhe considerations of prudence.

Cash Flow Statement: Cash Flow Statement prapared under Indirect method, In the manner
prescribed in Acoounting Standard 3.

Sagment Reporting: The Company is oparating under one segment. Therefore Disclosure as
to segment reporting not applicable.

b Linbiliti

involving ial degree of jon in
measuramant are racognised when Lhera is a present obligation as a result of past events and
It Is probable that there will be outflow of resources. Provlslons not made In the aocoun( (which

otherwise should have been made) are di: by way )

liabilities (il any) are nol but are di in lhe noles. C mels are
neither nor di in the financial

Earning per share: Baslc earning per share |s calculafad by dividing the net profit or loss for
the year (after taxes) by Lhe weighted

average number of equliy shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earning per share, if any
is computed using he weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity
sharg outstanding during the period excepl when the results would be anti-dilulive.
Accounting for Leases: Income by way of renl on premises given on cancelable operating
leasa, recognised over the period of lease on month to month bagis.

Impalrment of Assets: The Company has framed the policy of impairing the asset, when
camying value of lhe assets exceeds its recoverable amount, under lhe circumstances when
the Company is having the sources of informalion (whether intemal or extemal) that an
impaimment loss may have occumed. Accordingly, impainment losses will be charged to profit
and loss account in the year in which an asset is idenlified as impaired. The impairment losses
recognised In prior accounting perlods Is reversed If thera has been a change In the estimate
of the recoverable amount.

15.02 Provigion for Current Tax is armived at on the basis of Computation made ws 115JB of Income
Tax Act, 1961. There are no Deferred Tax Liabllitles. The Company has not recognlsed the
deferred tax credit (pertaining to losses to be camy forward under the head House Property &
Business) as a matter of prudence. The MAT Credit entitlement is not recognised as the asset,
as a matter of prudence.

15.03 List of Related Parties wilh whom lransactions are taken place during the year
Holding Company: M/s ICDS Limited, Manipal
Associate Concem: M/s Blue Cross Builders and Investors Limited, Manipal
M/s Manlpal Hotels Ltd., Chennal

Detalls of transactlons are as follows
Rs. Rs.
Current Year Pravious Year
A Interes| to Holding Company
M/s ICDS Limited
B Amount dus lo Holding Company
M/s ICDS Limited
C  Amount repaid to Helding Company (nel of TDS})
(after considering the Interest charged and nel off,
amounl recsived for meeling expenses)
D Investment held In Equity Shares of Assoclate
Concem:
M/s Blus Cross Builders and Investors Limited
{No. of Shares held: 99670 of Re.10 each
[P. Y. 89870 shares of Rs.10 each])
(All the shares were Purchasad from third party)
E Amounl Provided for:(of Associate concem)
Provislons for dimunition In the value of
investments
i.0. 99970 equity shares of Rs.10 each in Mfs
Blue Cross Bullders and Investors Limlted
F  Investment by Holding Company & Assodiate
Concems
Number of Equity shares of Rs.100 each of the
company
Hald by i. Holding Company viz: ICDS Ltd. 2089
ii. Associate Company viz: Manipal 1
Hotels Ltd.
No amount pertaining fo the related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts/advances
or written off/ writlen back during the year, olher than the amounts disclosed in ilem E above.

15.04 The Company is operaling under one segmenL. Therefore Disclosure as to segmenl reporting
not applicable.

15.05 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the assets listed under the head Curmenl Assels in the
Balance Sheet (viz: assets coverad under Note No. 6, 7 & 8), have a value on reallsation In
the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

15.06 There are no contingent Liabilities.

34,48,787 35.61,135

2,95,29,044 3,14,34,333

50,07,381 20,22,410

10,00,950 10,00,850

10,00,950 -

(P.Y. 2089)
(P.Y. 11)

15.07 Previous Years amounts were reg| wherever Y.
As per our reporl of aven dale
Sd/- Sd/-
H.N. 8. RAO T. SATISH U. PAl For Pal Nayak & Assoclates
Dirsctor Director Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009090S
Sd/-
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Partnar (M.No. 024541)
Place: Manipal Place : Manipal
Dale : 25-05-2013 Dale : 25-05-2013
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 20122013 2011-2012
Net Pront/{ Loes) before tax {190,737} 247.208
Ad|ustment for :
Interast Income (85,024) (14,150)
Depreciation 1,863,886 1,6,886
Diminution in va'ue of Investments 10,00,930
Interest Pald 34,468,767 3561,135
BT9 37,10871
Operating profit before working capital changes 23,34,942 39,568,079
Ad|ustment for changes In Working Caplia’
Dacreesai{Increase) In Advances and Recelvab'es  {52,514) (1,04,588)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (19,16,456) 13,03,268
{19,68,970) 11,98,879
Cash generated from operations 23,65,972 51,56,758
Taxss Refund/(Pald) 65,493 223691
Net Cash flow from/(used In) operating activitiea 24,31,485 8§3,80,749
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Interest Recelved 85924 14,150
Net cash flow from Investing activiiies 85924 14,150
78,17,389 53,954,509
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANGCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest (3448767} (35,81,135)
Net cash flow from Investing activities {3448,767) 61,135!
Net Increass / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash {929,378) 18,33.764
Equivalents
Cash and Cash squivalents(Opening Balance) 20,68,998 235231
Cash and Cash squivalents{Closing Balance) 11,36,817 2068995

Previous Year's figures are regrouped, reammanged and rec'assified wherever necessary.

Cash Flow statement Is belng prepared under “Indirecl Method" as lald down under Accounting Standard 3 of
INies. unting Standarde) Ru'es, 2008.

As per our report of even date

Sd/- Sd/-
T. SATISH U. PAI H.N. 8. RAO For Pal leak & Alloclltes
Dirgctor Dirgefor ccountants

Firm Reglstralbn No 0090008

Sd/-
CA ANANTHANARAYANA PAI K.
Partnar (M.No. 024541)
Place : Manipal
Date : 25-05-2013

Place: Manipal
Date : 25-05-2013




CUT HERE

§ICDS

LIMITED
Regd. Office: Syndicate House, Manipal — 576 104

PROXY FORM
FORTYSECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
IWE ..ot Of e —————————— in
the District Of ......cocceeeeier e being a member/members of the above named
Company, hereby appoint .........cccccoovrrevniieenc e o)
in the District of .........cccveeei e or failing NiMm .......cor s
OF e —————— in the District Of .......cccoccv i

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 42nd Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held at 4.00 p.m. on Monday, the 23rd September, 2013 and at any adjournment
thereof.

Signed this .......cccceeeiivecenniieieenns day of ..o 2013.
Affix
. Re. 1/-
Folio No. : Revenue
No. of Shares : Stamp
Strike out whichever is not desired. -
(Signature)

Note: The Proxy Form duly signed across the revenue stamp of Re. 1/- should reach the Company’s
Registered Office at least 48 hours before the time of meeting.

CUT HERE
G
SICPS
Regd. Office: Syndicate House, Manipal — 576 104

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Full Name of the Member attending (IN BLOCK LETTERS) ........ccciiiiiiiieeeir e

Full Name of the First HOIEr ...........cooiiiie e s e
(To be filled in if first named Holder does not attend Meeting)

NaME OF the PrOXY ...oiiiiieeiiiin it se s e e s e s e sas e ene s sn e e e enn e
(To be filled in if the Proxy Form has been duly deposited with the Company)

| hereby record my presence at the Fortysecond Annual General Meeting of the Members of the
Company to be held on Monday, the 23rd September, 2013 at 4.00 p.m. at the Rotary Hall, Anant Nagar,
Manipal — 576104,

Regd. Folio No.:

No. of Shares held: Member’s/Proxy’s Signature
(To be signed at the time of handing over the slip)
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